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Letter of compliance 
 

11 September 2013 

 

The Honourable David Crisafulli MP 

Minister for Local Government, Community Recovery and Resilience 

Level 18, Mineral House 

41 George Street 

BRISBANE QLD 4000 

 

Dear Minister Crisafulli 

I am pleased to present the 2012–2013 Annual Report and financial statements for the 
Department of Local Government, Community Recovery and Resilience. 

This report is prepared on the basis of the current administrative arrangements for this 
Department applying for the whole of the 2012–2013 financial year. That is, it reflects the 
structure, operations and performance of the Department as it now exists. 

I certify that this annual report complies with the: 

 prescribed requirements of the Financial Accountability Act 2009 and the Financial and 
Performance Management Standard 2009 

 detailed requirements set out in the Annual report requirements for Queensland 
Government agencies. 

A checklist outlining the annual reporting requirements can be found at Appendix 2 of this 
report or accessed at www.dlgcrr.qld.gov.au 

Sincerely 
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Director-General’s message 
The past year was both rewarding and 
challenging for the Department of Local 
Government, Community Recovery and 
Resilience (the Department). Following the 
disastrous weather events that affected 
many parts of Queensland in early 2013, 
the Premier called for a statewide response 
to ensure we have the capacity to respond 
to these events in a way that improves both 
our initial recovery and future resilience.  

Accordingly, the Minister for Local 
Government, Community Recovery and 
Resilience took on an expanded portfolio 
with the Department assuming 
responsibility for community recovery and 
resilience. This means that in parallel with 
our central role of supporting and 
promoting the authority and autonomy of 
local governments, we are also responsible 
for coordinating the State’s response to 
natural disasters and contributing to 
future economic and social resilience.  

During the past 12 months we worked on 
collaborative initiatives with councils, 
peak bodies, communities and other levels 
of government to build local capacity and 
identify new opportunities. Through our 
many diverse endeavours, the Department: 

 revitalised the Local Government Act 
2009 and the City of Brisbane Act 
2010 and streamlined the related 
regulations to put mayors and 
councillors in charge of their councils 

 supported the Queensland Boundaries 
Commissioner to assess  
de-amalgamation submissions and 
detailed proposals, leading to four local 
government area polls in March 2013  

 administered funding under the Local 
Government Grants and Subsidies 
program including $11.4 million 

approved for 52 flood mitigation 
projects as well as $12.27 million for 
66 infrastructure projects 

 developed and commenced 
implementing the 2013 Flood Recovery 
Plan and coordinated flood recovery 
and new resilience initiatives.  

We will continue to adapt and respond to 
a dynamic environment. The coming year 
will no doubt present new challenges as 
we continue to implement the 2013 Flood 
Recovery Plan, undertake new initiatives 
to support the vital work of local 
governments and build long-term 
community resilience.  

I would like to thank the Department’s 
staff, many stakeholders and our partners 
for their valued contributions to 
developing and implementing our wide-
ranging initiatives and projects. These 
helped councils and communities across 
Queensland achieve the best social and 
economic outcomes possible.  

As I commend to you our annual report 
for the 2012–13 financial year, I would 
like to recognise my colleagues Neil 
Castles, Director-General until August 
2012, and Stephen Johnston, Acting 
Director-General until February this year. 
Their dedication and hard work in 
establishing the new Department furthered 
the Government’s commitment to 
empowering and supporting the State’s 73 
local governments.  

Regards, 

Craig Evans AM 
Director-General 
Department of Local Government, 
Community Recovery and Resilience 
Queensland Government 
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About the Department 
In recognition of the central role of local 
government in the social and economic 
life of Queensland’s diverse communities 
and in response to the January 2013 
floods that affected many parts of the 
State, the former Department of Local 
Government became the Department of 
Local Government, Community Recovery 
and Resilience on 4 February 2013 under 
the Administrative Arrangements 
Amendment Order (No.1) 2013. 

Responsible for overseeing the legislative 
framework in which local governments 
operate and enhancing community 
recovery and future resilience, the 
Department’s purpose is to support and 
promote the autonomy, authority and 
accountability of local governments and 
to lead community recovery projects that 
support Queenslanders’ resilience to future 
natural disasters. 

Strong, sustainable and resilient local 
governments are the key focus. By 
supporting the work of councils through 
capacity building, financial sustainability 
and asset management programs, the 
Department aims to ensure Queensland 
has strong local governments that support 
our four pillar economy. 

The Minister for Local Government, 
Community Recovery and Resilience is 
responsible for administration of local 
government legislation, ensuring that 
Queensland councils have the necessary 
authority and capacity to contribute to the 
State’s growth and economic success. The 
Minister’s portfolio responsibilities include 
oversight of the Queensland 
Reconstruction Authority (QRA)—
underpinning the continued focus on 
reconstruction activities. 

In Queensland we enjoy a diverse range of 
environmental features including the 
Great Barrier Reef, tropical forests, the 
Great Dividing Range, fertile farm land 
and valuable resources. We also have 
vibrant population centres across the 
breadth of this de-centralised State from 
urban settings through to the outback.  

This diversity is an asset, however it also 
brings challenges in how our communities 
prepare for, respond to and rebuild after 
natural disasters. Local governments 
undertake a pivotal role in preparing and 
supporting local communities before, 
during and after such disasters.  

The Department is working in partnership 
with councils, other agencies and peak 
local government sector bodies to 
implement innovative recovery and 
resilience initiatives across the State.  

Ultimately, local communities will be best 
served by councils empowered with the 
capacity and capability to build resilience. 

With its expanded portfolio, the 
Department’s two service areas are:  

 Local government 

 Community recovery and resilience. 

Having retained responsibility for the local 
government function, the Department has 
continued to deliver on the commitments 
made in the Department of Local 
Government Strategic Plan 2012–2016. 

Local government 

The local government service area works 
with councils to support them in bringing 
increased economic prosperity and social 
cohesion to their local government areas 
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through sound policy development and 
good decision making.  

This is delivered through program 
implementation and review including 
capacity building, support for local 
government financial sustainability, 
administration of the Local Government 
Grants and Subsidies Program and the 
network of regional offices in the northern 
and southern regions. 

Local government service area 
objectives 

 Enable councils to have the authority 
and capacity to manage their interests, 
to be financially sustainable and 
accountable. 

 Provide councils with access to high 
quality capacity building programs and 
resources. 

To achieve these objectives, the local 
government service area provides support 
and advice in the following program areas. 

Financial sustainability and 
accountability 

 Administer the Local Government 
Grants and Subsidies Program to 
maximise outcomes for the Queensland 
community. 

 Support local governments to identify 
and manage financial sustainability 
issues.  

 Administer the councillor conduct 
complaints management and referral 
process in accordance with legislation. 

 Provide and administer a strategic 
policy and legislative framework for 
local government. 

 Support councils in managing their 
statutory obligations. 

Capacity building 

 Develop and deliver targeted high-
quality capacity building resources, 
training and solutions to ensure strong 
and responsive local government for 
Queensland. 

 Assist councils to identify opportunities 
for inter-council collaboration to build 
capacity, efficiencies and revenue. 

 Implement an internal capacity building 
model for staff to enhance their 
understanding of local government. 

Governance framework 

 Manage and maintain a database of 
local governments’ local laws. 

 Facilitate public access to local 
government boundary maps. 

Community recovery 
and resilience 
The community recovery and resilience 
service area facilitates the coordinated 
work of government agencies to build 
community resilience based on an all 
hazards approach in disaster ravaged areas.  

In the immediate term our priority is 
ensuring all local communities affected by 
recent natural disasters recover. Areas of 
focus for resilience include examination of 
the feasibility of levees and dams, natural 
safeguards and community infrastructure—
for example, community-based and led 
support plans.  

The clear priority in 2013–14 and 2014–15 
for all levels of government is to shift from 
a short-term focus on immediate fix and 
repair to a long-term vision where vital 
infrastructure and community services are 
resilient to future natural disasters and can 
withstand the test of time.  
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Community recovery and 
resilience service area 
objectives 

 Support local governments, other key 
government agencies and asset owners 
to work closely together to ensure 
recovery actions are focused on 
community outcomes and services are 
integrated and efficient. 

 Deliver recovery projects and resilience 
activities to mitigate the effect of 
natural disasters. 

 Implement the 2013 Flood Recovery 
Plan. 

 Build community resilience using an all 
hazards approach in disaster ravaged 
areas. 

To achieve these objectives, the 
community recovery and resilience service 
area provides: 

 support and advice to facilitate whole-
of-government community recovery 
and resilience initiatives 

 governance frameworks to oversee and 
coordinate recovery and resilience 
activities undertaken by government 
agencies 

 regular reporting to the Queensland 
and Australian Governments and the 
community on recovery and resilience 
activities and achievements 

 a coordinated approach—partnering 
with communities at the grass roots 
level to identify simple, practical and 
cost-effective solutions to minimise 
future natural disaster impacts. 
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Future direction 
The Queensland Government is Getting 
Queensland back on track with five 
pledges to: 

 grow a four pillar economy (tourism, 
agriculture, construction and resources)  

 lower the cost of living 

 invest in better infrastructure and 
better planning 

 revitalise front-line services 

 restore accountability in government. 

To progress these objectives in relation to 
the local government sector, the 
Department is:  

 leading the implementation of 
resilience projects in partnership with 
councils to minimise the impact of 
future natural disasters 

 enabling councils to deliver sound 
decisions including financial 
management and front-line services by 
providing an appropriate legislative 
framework 

 contributing to economic growth at the 
local and regional level by supporting 
the work of local government and 
reducing red tape 

 working in collaboration with other 
agencies to advance the Partners in 
Government Agreement 

 fostering respectful relationships, 
building capability and adding value to 
the work of councils 

 operating ethically and with integrity 

 promoting accountability in 
government by ensuring better value 
for taxpayers’ money 

 delivering innovative and beneficial 
programs that demonstrate our 
commitment to Queenslanders.  

Our vision 
Empowered councils with capacity to 
build resilient local communities. 

Our purpose 
To support the autonomy, authority and 
accountability of councils and lead the 
implementation of key resilience projects 
in partnership with councils, government 
and other agencies. 

Our objectives and 
how we will achieve 
them 

Councils have the authority and 
capacity to manage their 
interests, to be financially 
sustainable and accountable 

The Department will: 

 manage, monitor and report on the 
implementation of the Local 
Government (De-amalgamation 
Implementation) Regulation 2013 to 
establish four new councils by January 
2014 

 provide and administer a strategic 
policy and legislative framework that 
enables councils to deliver sound 
decisions and policies, front-line 
services and sound financial 
management for their communities 

 remove unnecessary prescription and 
red tape 
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 ensure councils are consulted in 
relation to policies, programs and 
legislation that affect them 

 ensure grant funding is administered 
according to priority and grant 
processes and procedures are simple 
and streamlined 

 highlight local government financial 
sustainability issues to key government 
decision makers including the Minister 
and councils 

 monitor council performance and 
corporate governance to determine 
appropriate, timely, effective and 
consistent capacity building and 
intervention strategies 

 support councils to manage their 
statutory obligations 

 administer the councillor conduct 
complaints management and referral 
process in accordance with legislation 
and in a timely and effective manner. 

Councils have access to high 
quality capacity building 
programs and resources 

The Department will: 

 broker and/or deliver targeted capacity 
building programs, resources and 
solutions 

 provide financial management and 
governance support to medium and 
high risk councils 

 assist councils to identify opportunities 
for collaboration with other councils, to 
build capacity, efficiencies and revenue 

 implement Council of Australian 
Government (COAG) initiatives. 

Recovery projects are delivered 
and resilience activities 
implemented to mitigate the 
effect of natural disaster events 

The Department will: 

 establish and maintain frameworks and 
processes to ensure effective 
coordination, governance and reporting 
of the whole-of-government response 
to natural disasters 

 oversee and coordinate recovery and 
resilience activities undertaken by 
government agencies supporting the 
delivery of resilience projects outlined 
in the 2013 Flood Recovery Plan  

 provide regular reports to Cabinet and 
the community on recovery and 
resilience activities and achievements. 

The Department is informed, 
efficient and effective and part 
of the best public service in 
Australia 

The Department will: 

 monitor service delivery to ensure cost 
effectiveness and alignment with 
government priorities, including 
working together to deliver smarter, 
simpler outcomes 

 put into practice an internal capacity 
building model to improve and 
maintain our understanding of local 
government, delivering services  
responsive to customers’ needs 

 operate within budget and reduce 
unnecessary expenditure and waste, 
including management of risk at the 
lowest level 

 instigate a ‘call the customer first’ policy 
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 ensure staff have access to professional 
development opportunities including 
ethical standards training 

 establish a secondment program with 
local governments 

 ensure all staff have performance and 
learning plans 

 maintain strong relationships with the 
Department of State Development, 
Infrastructure and Planning (DSDIP) for 
the provision of a range of corporate 
services under a service level 
agreement (SLA). 

Our legislative 
obligations 
The Department of Local Government, 
Community Recovery and Resilience 
administers the following portfolio 
legislation: 

City of Brisbane Act 2010—is specific to 
Brisbane City Council and provides for its 
constitution and the unique nature and 
extent of its responsibilities and powers. 
The City of Brisbane Act 2010 aligns to 
the requirements of the local government 
system provided in the Local Government 
Act 2009. 

Local Government Act 2009—provides a 
legal framework for a system of local 
government in Queensland that is 
accountable, effective, efficient and 
sustainable as well as for the way in 
which a local government is constituted 
and the nature and extent of its 
responsibilities and powers. It ensures that 
the local government jurisdiction is 
sufficiently recognised to support each 
local government to take responsibility for 
the good rule and government of its area. 

Local Government Electoral Act 2011—
provides for the transparent management 
and conduct of elections of Queensland 
local government councillors. 

Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander 
Communities (Justice, Land and Other 
Matters) Act 1984 (Part 9, Div 2 and 
part 10)—the Department continues to be 
responsible for transitional provisions for 
any local law making process that was 
started but not finished at the time the 
Community Services (Aborigines) Act 
1984 was replaced (part 9, division 2), 
and transitional provisions for the 
continued appointment of police officers, 
members of certain boards and 
community groups under the Local 
Government and Other Legislation 
(Indigenous Regional Councils) 
Amendment Act 2007 (part 10). 
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Our operating environment 

Queensland communities expect their local 
governments to deliver a high standard of 
services. In addition to significant 
financial and economic pressures, many 
councils are dealing with the natural 
disasters of January 2013.  

The impact of flood inundation in early 
2013, which particularly affected the Wide 
Bay region, on economic production is 
estimated to be around one quarter of a 
percentage point of gross state product. As 
a result, Queensland economic growth is 
estimated to be 3.5 per cent in 2012–13, 
compared with the 2012–13 Mid Year 
Fiscal and Economic Review forecast of 
3.75 per cent.  

Investment in three liquefied natural gas 
projects peaked in 2013, with the 
construction phase, accounting for $60 
billion in capital expenditure, now moving 
to completion. As such extraordinarily 
large projects move out of the 
construction phase and with no similar-
sized projects in the pipeline, Queensland’s 
total business investment is anticipated to 
fall each year from 2013–14 to 2015–16.  

Outside of the resources sector however, 
investment conditions are forecast to 
improve. This is in line with the 
Government’s strategy of broadening the 
economy through focusing on the four 
pillars of construction, tourism, resources 
and agriculture. 

A combination of low interest rates, 
stronger income growth and faster 
population growth is also expected to 
produce a strengthening in household 
consumption and dwelling investment.  

This in turn is expected to drive a recovery 
in employment growth from 2013–14 

onwards, with the 2015–16 unemployment 
rate forecast at 5.5 per cent.  

These macro-economic conditions 
affecting Queensland’s economy will of 
course affect local governments and the 
support their communities require. 

Through judicious administration of the 
local government legislative framework, 
the Department supports the State’s four 
pillar strategy by giving councils the 
authority and autonomy to make decisions 
that promote business opportunities and 
build the local and regional economy. 

Appropriate consultation and meaningful 
engagement with stakeholders allows the 
Department to fully understand the issues 
facing the local government sector and 
work collaboratively to establish 
innovative solutions. 

The Department has ongoing interaction 
with the Local Government Association of 
Queensland (LGAQ) on the capacity needs 
of Queensland’s local governments, 
particularly in relation to asset 
management, financial sustainability, 
revenue generation and alternative 
business and service delivery models. 
Together with the LGAQ, the Department 
develops and delivers accredited training 
in governance and administration for 
councillors and council staff. 

In addition the Department is a member of 
the LGAQ Indigenous Leadership Forum’s 
capacity building working group and 
participates in forums run by Local 
Government Managers Australia 
(Queensland) for the chief executive 
officers of Indigenous local governments. 

The Department also consulted and 
engaged with government departments 
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and key agencies in developing the 2013 
Flood Recovery Plan as part of the delivery 
of the Department’s community recovery 
and resilience services.  

To prepare for the conditions ahead, the 
Department has considered its strategic 
challenges, risks and opportunities. 

Strategic challenges 
 Increasing the autonomy, authority and 

accountability of councils. 

 Empowering councils to maintain and 
improve front-line services. 

 Working with councils to realise the 
government’s objectives for the 
community. 

 Identifying community infrastructure 
and resilience initiatives that will make 
a real difference and minimise the 
impact of future disasters. 

Strategic risks 
In delivering its services the Department 
faces some risks that—should they 
eventuate—would potentially lead to being 
unable to fully deliver its strategic 
objectives. These are referred to as 
‘strategic risks’. 

Key to managing strategic risks is 
thorough assessment of potential impacts 
and likelihood coupled with 
implementation of appropriate mitigation 
measures. These aim to either reduce the 
likelihood of the risk occurring, or reduce 
the potential impact should the risk occur. 

Areas of particular focus in managing the 
Department’s strategic risks include 
ensuring that: 

 local governments are prepared for 
increased authority and accountability 

during the current period of change 
and evolution characterised by  
de-amalgamation, a higher percentage 
of newly elected councillors and 
mayors and changing community 
demands 

 the emerging and long-term needs of 
the local government sector are 
identified and relevant actions taken 

 funding—including grants programs—is 
appropriately prioritised and local 
governments are supported to 
strengthen their financial sustainability 
in providing community needs-driven 
services 

 the Department’s senior leadership 
provides proactive and robust 
consideration of service delivery in the 
context of the Queensland 
Government’s commitments to and 
objectives for the community. 

Strategic 
opportunities 
 Implementing the Local Government 

(De-amalgamation Implementation) 
Regulation 2013 to establish four new 
councils by January 2014. 

 Strengthening autonomy and 
accountability in local government. 

 Supporting and partnering with 
Indigenous councils to achieve gains 
for the State’s Indigenous communities. 

 Implementing a client focused service 
delivery model to deliver services and 
coordinate resilience initiatives more 
efficiently. 

 Working with communities to enhance 
their preparedness for future natural 
disasters.
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Working across government—a 
collaborative approach 

Partners in 
Government 
Agreement 
Underlining a renewed emphasis on 
strengthening and managing local 
government client relationships and 
brokering cross-agency solutions, the 
Minister and the LGAQ signed the Partners 
in Government Agreement (the agreement) 
at the LGAQ Civic Leaders and Financial 
Summit on 4 July 2012.  

The agreement articulates the key 
principles that the state and local 
governments’ relationship is based on, 
including ongoing and respectful 
negotiation and engagement. It recognises 
the vital elements of real cooperation and 
decision making at the appropriate 
government level. 

Throughout 2012–13 application of the 
agreement led to open communication and 
more thorough understanding of roles and 
responsibilities.  

Practically, the agreement saw the 
Department partner with Townsville City 
Council to present a workshop on 
administrative decisions and review 
processes. This included presentations 
from the Office of the Queensland 
Ombudsman and the Queensland Civil and 
Administrative Tribunal and attracted 49 
participants from 12 councils. 

Council of Australian 
Governments 
Initiatives 

National Partnership Agreement 
on Water for the Future 

The Department continued delivery of the 
COAG Strategy on Water and Wastewater 
Services in Remote (including Indigenous) 
Communities—Queensland under the 
National Partnership Agreement on Water 
for the Future project during 2012–13. 

This project aims to improve water and 
wastewater delivery by Queensland remote 
Indigenous councils. The Commonwealth 
Government has committed up to $3.35 
million over 2011–14 for capacity 
building initiatives. 

The Department’s Northern Region is 
continuing delivery of these initiatives in 
communities that include Aurukun, Hope 
Vale, Wujal Wujal, Doomadgee, 
Mornington Island, Woorabinda, Lockhart 
River and Yarrabah.  

These initiatives focus on operator 
training and mentoring, asset 
management, improved technologies, 
water demand management and the 
development of regional and sub-regional 
networks. The Department has also been 
working closely with James Cook 
University in the development of online 
interactive learning tools that can be used 
by all local governments in Queensland.  
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National Partnership Agreement 
initiative: Local Government 
Reform Fund  

The Local Government Reform Fund 
(LGRF) is a component of the National 
Partnership on Local Government and 
Regional Development that aims to 
improve the capacity, resilience and 
infrastructure in communities and build 
capacity and resilience of local 
governments. The Commonwealth 
Government established the LGRF to 
support the National Partnership objective 
of increased capacity within local 
government in asset and financial 
management and aims to contribute to the 
following outcomes: 

 better communities, achieved through 
sound business and financial planning 
within councils to support stronger 
asset management 

 improved local government capability 
and resilience 

 improved efficiency in local government 
operation and services through the 
promotion of ‘best practice’. 

‘Improving Asset Management in 
Indigenous Local Governments—
Queensland’ is an LGRF project 
administered by the Department in 
collaboration with the LGAQ.  

The pilot project ‘Community 
Responsibility in Managing Assets’—
delivered by the LGAQ at the Northern 
Peninsula Area Regional Council and 
Yarrabah Aboriginal Shire Council—aimed 
to educate community residents on the 
efficient and effective use of 
infrastructure. A particular focus was the 
role of water and sewerage assets in 
achieving improved health outcomes for 
Indigenous communities; a key ‘Closing 
the Gap’ goal.  

The Commonwealth Government 
Department of Regional Australia, Local 
Government, Arts and Sport provided 
$320,000 in funding. Our departmental 
staff assisted with services including: 

 development of a funding submission 

 consultation with LGAQ and pilot 
councils on project scope and objectives 

 development of a project 
implementation plan 

 contracting to LGAQ and related high-
level supervision of performance 

 budget management 

 liaison with and reporting to the 
Commonwealth Government. 

The two participating councils also made 
practical non-cash contributions.  

‘Community Responsibility in Managing 
Assets’ delivered: 

 development and implementation of a 
community education strategy 
targeting all levels of the community 
including primary and secondary 
schools, residents, organisations and 
small business groups 

 an action plan for the implementation 
of the project 

 an evaluation report summarising the 
extent and results of the project’s 
engagement activities, implementation 
strategies, project outcomes and 
learning materials produced 

 a kit for use by other Indigenous local 
governments. 

The project emphasised forward looking 
asset management, including the benefits 
of economical asset use. This will assist 
Indigenous local governments in 
preserving, maintaining and extending the 
life of their assets and providing ongoing 
services to their communities. 
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Achieving outcomes for the community 
The strategic plan is the key instrument 
that articulates the Department’s 
objectives, service areas and priorities for 
performance. Operational activities are 
planned in line with the strategic plan, 
and incorporate risk management 
strategies. These planning stages form the 
base of the Department’s organisational 
performance management process, which 
then cycles through stages of delivery, 
reporting and evaluation.  

The following outlines the Department’s 
performance and key achievements as 
they relate to the objectives articulated in 
the Strategic plan 2012–16, which was 
operational for the 2012–13 period. 

Objective: Councils 
have the authority and 
capacity to manage 
their interests 

Performance indicator: Changes 
to local government portfolio 
legislation are implemented 

Revitalisation of legislation 

The Department implemented a significant 
legislative review program with major 
focus on reducing red-tape and freeing 
councils from bureaucracy.  

On 22 November 2012 the Local 
Government and Other Legislation 
Amendment Act 2012 delivered the first 
phase of the Government’s local 
government legislative reform package 
and on 14 December 2012 the City of 
Brisbane Regulation 2012 and the Local 

Government Regulation 2012 delivered the 
second phase, including streamlining six 
regulations into two. 

With the reduced prescription and red tape 
of the existing legislation, local 
governments can operate with increasing 
efficiency and effectiveness, 
independently of the state government.  

The legislative reforms give mayors and 
councillors the autonomy, authority and 
capacity to: 

 plan and solve problems 

 improve front-line services 

 use sound financial management 
practices 

 establish appropriate local laws 

 enable communities to explore the 
feasibility of de-amalgamation 

 reinstate the corporate status of councils 

 repeal the onerous and costly 
provisions requiring some councils to 
live-stream their council meetings.  

This was the focus of the Department’s 
contribution to the Public Sector Renewal 
Program during 2012, and demonstrates 
the Government’s commitment to reducing 
red tape and freeing councils from 
bureaucracy and State Government 
interference. 

As part of the process of amending the 
legislation, the Department provided an 
extensive training program to enable 
councillors to fully understand the 
implications for them and their 
communities.  

With the revitalised legislation and training 
in place all councils now have a greater 
capacity for prompt and effective decision-
making as well as an increased ability to 
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deliver better economic and social 
outcomes for the people they represent. 

Responding to the devastation caused by 
ex-tropical Cyclone Oswald, the 
Queensland Reconstruction Authority 
Amendment Act 2013 was also passed.  

The Act provides the Queensland 
Government with the necessary powers to 
effectively and efficiently respond to 
natural disasters  and to enhance the 
State’s future resilience to similar events.  

Performance indicator: The 
Department provides timely 
support to the Queensland 
Boundaries Commissioner. 

Local government de-amalgamation  

Potential de-amalgamation was a key 
issue for many local governments during 
2012–13 and Queenslanders were given a 
direct say in the future direction of their 
communities. In collaboration with the 
Queensland Boundaries Commissioner (the 
Commissioner) the Department established 
a feasibility assessment process for de-
amalgamation proposals. 

The Department’s role in supporting the 
Commissioner included: 

 ensuring clear and open 
communication between the submitting 
communities, the Minister for Local 
Government, Community Recovery and 
Resilience and the Commissioner  

 assisting in the initial review of 
proposals against set criteria 

 providing high-level support in 
assisting the Commissioner to process 
and review the proposals referred from 
the Minister. 

The Department also developed the Local 
Government (De-amalgamation Polls) 

Regulation 2013 and Local Government 
(Implementation Regulation) 2013, which 
were enacted in February and April 2013 
respectively. 

The Commissioner’s review process 
involved direct engagement with de-
amalgamation proponents, regional 
councils and other key stakeholders to 
hear concerns and clarify issues around 
the scope and costs of de-amalgamation. 

Queensland Treasury and Trade (QTT) was 
also consulted to analyse the financial 
sustainability of—and impacts on—the 
affected councils.  

Taking up the opportunity to have their 
say, Queensland communities submitted 
19 de-amalgamation proposals to the 
Minister. Of these the Minister referred 
five to the Commissioner for detailed 
assessment. These were proposals relating 
to the former local government areas of 
Noosa, Livingstone, Mareeba, Douglas and 
Isis.  

The Commissioner reviewed these 
proposals and developed comprehensive 
reports for submission to the Minister that 
summarised the likely impacts and costs 
of de-amalgamation, financial 
sustainability ratings and impacts. 

The Minister determined that Noosa, 
Livingstone, Mareeba and Douglas would 
proceed to a poll to gauge whole-of-
community support. 

The communities of all four areas voted in 
favour of de-amalgamation, and the 
Department is now working to transition 
the councils following the appointment of 
a Transfer Manager for each area.  

Elections for new mayors and councillors 
are scheduled for late 2013 in readiness 
for the official start of the new councils 
on 1 January 2014. 
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Providing support for the  
de-amalgamation process is one of the 
ways in which the Department has 
contributed to the goal of enabling 
councils to deliver value-for-money 
services that clearly address the needs of 
their communities.  

Objective: Councils 
are financially 
sustainable 

Performance indicator: The 
Minister is briefed on major 
local government financial 
sustainability issues in a timely 
manner. 

The Department: 

 advised the Minister of and 
implemented key changes to the 
Financial Management (Sustainability) 
Guideline prior to the preparation of 
2012–13 local government 
sustainability statements and 2013–14 
budgets 

 alerted the Minister to the key 
recommendations of and departmental 
response to the Auditor-General’s 
2012–13 Report to Parliament No. 10: 
Results of audits: Local government 
entities 2011–12 

 regularly advised the Minister of the 
status of the appointment of financial 
controllers in two remote local 
governments.  

Performance indicator: Grant 
funding is allocated in 
accordance with state priorities. 

Grants and subsidies distributed in 2012–
13 were allocated in accordance with 
program guidelines and/or funding 
recommendations approved by the 
Minister. This included the: 

 Local Government Grants and 
Subsidies Program with the 
infrastructure and flood response 
categories ($25.2 million) 

 GraffitiSTOP ($2 million) 

 State Government Financial Aid 
Program ($32.8 million) 

 Financial Assistance Grant ($420.8 
million) 

 Show Societies Grant ($2 million). 

Graffiti removal 

Removing graffiti can be a major burden 
for local governments and in 2012–13 the 
Department teamed up with local 
governments and Crime Stoppers 
Queensland to tackle the issue. Funding of 
$250,000 was provided to Crime Stoppers 
Queensland to establish and operate the 
GraffitiSTOP hotline, which was launched 
in November 2012.  

This service allows the public to report 
information about graffiti in their local 
area by calling the GraffitiSTOP hotline, 
through the mobile-enabled website or by 
SMS. Information received is then 
provided to the relevant council.  

A further $1.75 million in funding was 
provided to local governments for graffiti 
management and removal initiatives. 
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Grants and subsidies program 

The Department managed and 
implemented the Local Government Grants 
and Subsidies Program delivering:  

 the first round of funding to help local 
councils meet the Queensland Floods 
Commission of Inquiry 
recommendations with $11.4 million 
allocated for 52 projects in 33 councils 

 $1.5 million to commence the Brisbane 
River Catchment Flood Study, which is 
a three-year project 

 $12.27 million to 43 councils for 66 
local government infrastructure projects. 

As well, the 2013–14 funding rounds were 
opened in June 2013 with $14.6 million 
(infrastructure) and $12.9 million (floods 
response) available. 

Infrastructure funding for Indigenous 
councils 

The Department continued to upgrade 
environmental health infrastructure in 
Indigenous communities through the 
Indigenous State Infrastructure Program. 

Approximately $13 million was spent on 
projects that included:  

 construction of a 24 lot subdivision in 
Doomadgee Shire Council 

 construction of 17 serviced allotments, 
fencing and landscaping at Aurukun 
Shire Council 

 construction of a 16 lot subdivision 
and upgrades to sewage reticulation at 
Kowanyama Shire Council 

 construction of an 18 lot subdivision, 
water treatment plant upgrades, sewage 
system and solid waste infrastructure at 
Napranum Shire Council 

 replacement of the water reticulation 
network and solid waste infrastructure 
upgrades at Hope Vale Shire Council  

 upgrades to sewage pump stations at 
Yarrabah Shire Council.  

Objective: Councils 
have access to 
capacity building 
programs 

Performance indicator: Targeted 
and high quality capacity 
building resources and training 
programs are developed. 

In 2012–13 the Department allocated $1.2 
million for capacity building programs, 
with $0.5 million for general capacity 
building and $0.7 million specifically to 
address Indigenous local governments’ 
needs.  

The Department developed targeted 
resources and training programs to build 
the capability of the elected and 
administrative arms of local government 
and to address the needs of rural, remote 
and Indigenous local governments. 

With a strategic focus on assisting councils 
to understand and comply with new local 
government legislation, the Department: 

 provided face-to-face training on the 
legislative amendments to assist better 
understanding and compliance with 
new local government legislation—
attended by more than 300 councillors 
and senior staff from 50 councils 

 published online resources, including 
the comprehensive Councillor 
responsibilities under the Local 
Government Act 2009 

 completed delivery of ‘councillor 
induction’ training for those newly 
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elected councillors who were unable to 
attend the program delivered in late 
2011–12 

 delivered workshops on financial 
statements, accounting and legislative 
requirements, in conjunction with the 
Queensland Audit Office—attended by 
more than 140 council officers from 68 
local governments 

 worked with QTT to assist councils with 
their long-term financial forecasting 
and borrowing applications. 

Feedback from program participants and 
resource users indicated that these 
contributed to the knowledge of 
councillors and to the effectiveness of 
council decision making.  

The Department also collaborated with the 
LGAQ to develop and deliver a nationally-
accredited Diploma of Local Government 
Management Administration program to 
15 local government staff. 

The Department offered two scholarships 
of $3,500 per candidate for the September 
2012 and February 2013 program intakes.  

A nationally-accredited course, the 
program provides opportunities for 
participants to develop skills and 
knowledge and to gain formal recognition 
for the roles and responsibilities they 
undertake in local government. 

Additionally, as part of a project to 
normalise Weipa— that is, to incorporate it 
within a local government area, the 
Department: 

 partnered with QTT to work with Rio 
Tinto Alcan and the Weipa Town 
Authority on developing strategies to 
improve the financial sustainability of 
the proposed local government 

 worked with the Weipa Town Authority 
to improve its capacity to transition to 
a local government. 

Providing councillors and local 
government officers with this range of 
training opportunities equips them to meet 
the following challenges; 

 dealing with turnover of elected 
officials at all levels of government  

 balancing greater autonomy and 
associated accountability requirements 
under a less prescriptive legislative 
framework 

 complying with legislative and 
regulatory requirements administered 
by the Commonwealth Government 
and professional bodies.  

Supporting the LGAQ Indigenous 
Leadership Forum 

An initiative of the LGAQ, the Indigenous 
Leadership Forum is independent and 
autonomous. In 2012–13 the Department 
provided support by:  

 participating in a capacity building 
working group established by the forum 

 providing funding for business 
solutions including financial 
management and asset management 
systems and advisory services to 
improve administrative practices 

 supporting mayors and councillors by 
brokering mentoring services and 
accredited governance training. 

Financial sustainability 

Local government sustainability continues 
to be a focus for the Department. Councils 
face reduced subsidies, natural disaster 
impacts, infrastructure charges capping 
and increasing demand for service 
provision by constituents. This results in 
having to access debt at greater levels 
than ever before. At the same time rating 
agencies are increasingly scrutinising state 
and local government finances. 
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In previous years local government 
financial sustainability has been assessed 
through an evaluation process. In 2012–13 
local government financial sustainability 
evaluations were available to local 
governments on a voluntary basis, 
however no local governments accessed 
an evaluation in this manner. 

The Department undertook financial 
sustainability evaluations for 35 local 
governments using alternative methods in 
association with QTT. These include the: 

 comprehensive rolling, annual credit 
review program for local governments 
considered high risk and/or 
undertaking large borrowings—for the 
2012–13 financial year 10 local 
governments underwent a QTT credit 
review; each credit review supported 
the level of debt held and the proposed 
additional borrowings for 2012–13 

 local government borrowing program 

 Queensland Boundaries Commission 
reviews. 

Sustainability requirement changes 

To reduce red tape the Department 
streamlined the sustainability and 
reporting process identified in the 
financial sustainability provisions of the 
Local Government Act 2009, City of 
Brisbane Act 2010, Local Government 
Regulation 2012 and City of Brisbane 
Regulation 2012.  

In particular, the financial sustainability 
measures that local governments need to 
report on were refocused. 

The key reportable measures of long-term 
financial sustainability are: 

 Asset Sustainability Ratio 

 Net Financial Liabilities Ratio 

 Operating Surplus Ratio. 

These are consistent with the first three 
national indicators endorsed by the 
Institute of Public Works Engineering 
Australia. 

Three ratios are no longer a mandatory 
reporting requirement as they are more 
appropriate for credit reviews and analysis, 
rather than as core measures of long-term 
financial sustainability. These are the: 

 Working Capital Ratio 

 Interest Coverage Ratio 

 Asset Consumption Ratio.  

This provides a more efficient process for 
councils’ reporting. 

To increase transparency, from 2013 
onwards local governments are required to 
publish as part of their annual report the 
relevant financial sustainability measures 
in financial sustainability statements that 
provide both the current-year and long-
term outlooks. 

To assist local governments in 
transitioning to meeting these 
requirements, the Department prepared the 
Financial Management (Sustainability) 
Guideline 2013. This provides illustrative 
examples on calculating the relevant 
financial sustainability measures.  

Objective: Councils 
are accountable 

Performance indicator: The 
Department’s response to 
issues and queries is timely, 
effective and consistent. 

In 2012–13 the Department: 

 conducted regular council visits, 
forums and workshops to better 
understand and respond to council 
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issues and build constructive 
relationships 

 facilitated cross-agency meetings to 
help broker regional and local solutions 
for councils 

 participated in regional networks such 
as regional managers networks, disaster 
management groups  

 interviewed council mayors and chief 
executive officers to inform design of 
council-specific capacity building 
programs 

 established and facilitated a northern 
region financial officers’ network 

 established a mentoring program for 
Burke Shire Council to assist the 
development of council senior staff  

 provided coaching for senior council 
staff at Northern Peninsula Area 
Regional Council to support improved 
business and operational practices 

 consulted with councils to assist them 
to meet Departmental compliance 
requirements and instigated mitigation 
action where necessary 

 provided practical support to councils 
through the regional office network to 
enhance the effectiveness of the Local 
Government Grants and Subsidies 
program. 

Caloundra Aerodrome leases 

In line with the Queensland Government’s 
election commitment to put a case for the 
extension of existing leases at Caloundra 
Aerodrome without the need to go to 
tender or auction, the Minister granted 
approval for Sunshine Coast Regional 
Council to extend leases to existing lessees 
on 12 July 2012. 

This reduction in red tape was further 
supported by amendments made to the 
Local Government Act 2009 to provide 

that future leases can be extended by 
Council without the need to gain the 
Minister’s approval. 

Performance indicator: 
Councillor conduct complaints 
are handled in a timely and 
effective manner. 

In 2012–13 the Department received 50 
complaints relating to councillor conduct. 
To streamline its complaints management 
procedures, the Department reviewed its 
practices to: 

 introduce a more robust assessment 
and preliminary review process to: 

– ensure that priority cases are 
adequately resourced 

– minimise time spent on investigating 
matters that may be frivolous, 
vexatious or lacking in substance 

 improve processes for engaging 
external investigators 

 combine data into a single complaints 
management and tracking system, 
which is being further reviewed to 
identify potential efficiencies 

 rationalise and consolidate complaints 
management documentation. 

 Councillor conduct complaints data 
was used to identify trends to inform 
the Department’s capacity building 
strategy and the development of 
information for councillors to minimise 
the likelihood of conduct breaches. 
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Objective: The 
Department is an 
efficient and effective 
organisation with an 
understanding of local 
governments 

Performance indicator: All staff 
are aware of the Department’s 
priorities and ethical values and 
their roles are aligned to 
objectives. 

The Department encouraged staff to take 
personal responsibility for their individual 
role in achieving its objectives. 
Performance and learning plans for 
managers and staff outline individual 
responsibilities for specific tasks and 
projects, ensuring that roles align with the 
Department’s strategic objectives and 
direction. 

Management promoted the Department’s 
priorities and values through participation 
in external forums, team meetings and 
workshops. 

All staff were also given the opportunity 
to pursue relevant development including 
an online code of conduct program. 

Performance indicator: The 
Service Level Agreement with 
DSDIP works effectively so that 
issues are readily identified and 
managed efficiently. 

To ensure the efficient application of the 
SLA with DSDIP, the Department: 

 maintained an identified issues log 

 responded promptly to requests for 
advice/information from DSDIP through 
the nominated departmental officers. 

Community recovery 
and resilience flood 
recovery initiative 
Following the addition of responsibility 
for the community recovery and resilience 
portfolio, the Department developed the 
Queensland 2013 Flood Recovery Plan in 
response to the natural disaster events of 
January 2013. The plan provides the 
framework to lead the statewide recovery, 
encouraging all levels of government to 
work with industry and the community to 
rebuild stronger infrastructure and leave a 
permanent legacy of safety and resilience 
for the future. 

The Department established five functional 
recovery groups—chaired by the Director-
General of the relevant state government 
department—which are the: 

 Human and Social Recovery Group 

 Economic Recovery Group 

 Environmental Recovery Group 

 Building Recovery Group 

 Roads and Transport Recovery Group. 

The functional recovery groups bring 
together relevant expertise to effectively 
manage and coordinate recovery 
initiatives across all impacted regions. 

In line with the Queensland 2013 Flood 
Recovery Plan the Department led the 
Chief Executive Officer Leadership Team’s 
sub-committee on Community Recovery 
and Resilience, which is coordinating the 
planning and implementation of whole-
of-government recovery and resilience 
activities. 



 

 
Department of Local Government, Community Recovery and Resilience Annual Report 
2012–13 -21- 

 

Performance against service standards 
The Service Delivery Statement 2013–14 
forms part of the budget documents and 
provides a clear overview of departmental 
achievements during the 2012–13 
financial year and expected performance 
during 2013–14. Performance reported 
includes non-financial performance in 
service areas of the Department, measured 
against service standards.  

As the Budget is delivered prior to the end 
of the financial year, estimated actual 
performance is provided in the Service 
Delivery Statement 2013–14. The 
following provides complete non-financial 
reporting of the actual performance 
achieved for the full 2012–13 financial 
year (including for measures that are 
discontinued in 2013–14).  

Table 1 Current service standards of the Local Government service area 

Percentage of local governments satisfied with  advice and services provided by the Department 

2012–13 
Target/ 

estimate 

2012–13 
Estimated 

actual 

2012–13 
Actual 

2013–14 
Target/ 

estimate 

85% 85.1% 85.1% 85% 

 

Note: The 2012–13 Actual reflects results 
from a survey of mayors and chief 
executive officers finalised in April 2013. 
An actual performance result was not 
recorded for 2011–12 due to the 
coincidence of both state and local 
government elections in early 2012. The 
department considered it inappropriate to 
impose a detailed survey on local 
governments at that time. 

 

 

Percentage of scheduled activities and programs undertaken by the Department completed 
within agreed set timeframes and budget allocation 

2012–13 
Target/ 

estimate 

2012–13 
Estimated 

actual 

2012–13 
Actual 

2013–14 
Target/ 

estimate 

New 
measure 

New 
measure 

New 
measure 

85% 

Note: This is a new service standard and 
is an efficiency measure indicating the 
Department’s ability to meet key 
timeframes each financial year. Trend 
data is not available for new service 
standards. 

     

Percentage of Local Government Grants and Subsidies (infrastructure) Program funding 
agreements managed according to agreed timeframes 

2012–13 
Target/ 

estimate 

2012–13 
Estimated 

actual 

2012–13 
Actual 

2013–14 
Target/ 

estimate 

New 
measure 

New 
measure 

New 
measure 

90% 

Note: This is a new service standard and 
is designed to measure the Department’s 
efficiency in administering the Local 
Government Grants and Subsidies 
(Infrastructure) Program. Trend data is 
not available for new service standards. 
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Table 2 Current service standards of the Community Recovery and 
Resilience service area 

Percentage of Local Government Grants and Subsidies (Flood) Program funding agreements 
managed according to agreed timeframes 

2012–13 
Target/ 

estimate 

2012–13 
Estimated 

actual 

2012–13 
Actual 

2013–14 
Target/ 

estimate 

New 
measure 

New 
measure 

New 
measure 

90% 

Note: This is a new service standard and 
is designed to measure the Department’s 
efficiency in administering the Local 
Government Grants and Subsidies (Flood) 
Program. As a result of being a new 
service standard, trend data is not 
available. 

 

Table 3 Discontinued other measures of the Local Government service area 

Percentage of community infrastructure projects funded by the Department completed by Local 
Governments within approved timeframes 

2012–13 
Target/ 

estimate 

2012–13 
Estimated 

actual 

2012–13 
Actual 

2013–14 
Target/ 

estimate 

90% 100% 100% Discontinued 
measure 

 

 

Note: This measure was discontinued for 
Service Delivery Statement reporting 
purposes as it is not an indication of the 
efficiency or effectiveness of the service 
area. It is a measure of local government 
activity and will be reported in the 
Department’s annual report. 
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Table 3 Continued: Discontinued other measures of the Local Government 
service area 

Number of Local Governments financial sustainability evaluations conducted by the Office of Local 
Government per annum 

2012–13 
Target/ 

estimate 

2012–13 
Estimated 

actual 

2012–13 
Actual 

2013–14 
Target/ 

estimate 

73 25 35 Discontinued 
measure 

 

 

Note: This measure was discontinued 
because the quantity of evaluations of 
local government financial sustainability 
is not an indication of the efficiency or 
effectiveness of the service area. In 
particular, as this measure relied upon a 
voluntary evaluation by local 
governments, the response rate was 
relatively low, thus affecting the 
relevance and usefulness of any findings 
from the process. The Department will 
continue to support councils who request 
an evaluation and this activity will be 
reported in the Department’s annual 
report. 

As a result of a move to voluntary 
financial evaluation and to more 
streamlined processes, there was a 
reduction in the number of assessments 
conducted during the 2012–13 financial 
year. At the time of the publication of 
the Service Delivery Statement 25 
financial sustainability evaluations had 
been conducted. A further 10 evaluations 
were undertaken by 30 June 2013. New 
processes undertaken in collaboration 
with Queensland Treasury and Trade 
include: 

 comprehensive rolling, annual credit 
program for local governments 
considered high risk and/or 
undertaking large borrowings 

 local government borrowing 
program 

 Queensland Boundaries 
Commission reviews. 

 

 



 

 
Department of Local Government, Community Recovery and Resilience Annual Report 
2012–13 -24- 

 

Summary of financial performance 
An overview of the financial statements of the Department of Local Government, 
Community Recovery and Resilience for the 2012–13 financial year, which are provided in 
detail at the ‘Financial statements’ section of this report. 

Understanding the 
financial statements 
As a result of Administrative 
Arrangements Order (No. 1) 2013, dated 4 
February 2013 and effective 1 March 
2013, the Department of Local 
Government was renamed the Department 
of Local Government, Community 
Recovery and Resilience (the Department). 
As part of the change, responsibility for 
the Queensland Reconstruction Authority 
was transferred from the Minister for State 
Development, Infrastructure and Planning, 
effecting a transfer of administered 
funding arrangements to the Department. 

The financial statements represent the 
Department established as a Queensland 
Government department under the Public 
Service Act 2008. 

Operating result 

Table 4 Operating result 

 2013 

$’000 

2012

$’000 

Total income 131,752 446,919 

Total expenses 132,725 470,043 

Operating result from 
continuing 
operations (after tax) 

(973) (23,124) 

Increase in asset 
revaluation reserve 

1,615 - 

Total comprehensive 
income 

642 (23,124) 

Income 

Figure 1 Income by category for 
year ended 30 June 
2013 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

The Department’s main income source is 
departmental services revenue from the 
State Government. In 2012–13, $125.7 
million was appropriated from the State 
Government representing a decrease of 
$308.9 million on 2011–12. The 
appropriation decrease is predominantly 
due to the: 

 transfer of the Natural Disaster Relief 
and Recovery Arrangements function 
to the Queensland Reconstruction 
Authority 

 transfer of Planning functions and 
Building Codes Queensland to the 
Department of State Development, 
Infrastructure and Planning and the 
Department of Housing and Public 
Works respectively on 1 May 2012 

 carry-over of funding for the Local 
Government Grants and Subsidies 
Program to 2013–14. 
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Expenses 

Figure 2 Expense by category 
for year ended 30 June 
2013 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

The Department’s main categories of 
expenses are grant expenses, employee 
expenses and supplies and services. 

In 2012–13, grants and subsidies 
expenses totalled $108.2 million (2011–
12: $357.4 million). The 70 per cent 
decrease in grants and subsidies expense 
is primarily due to the transfer of the 
Natural Disaster Relief and Recovery 
Arrangements function to the Queensland 
Reconstruction Authority and the 
completion of some grants programs. 

Employee expenses decreased by $47.4 
million to $12.5 million (2011–12: $59.9 
million). The decrease in employee 
expenses is primarily due to the 
machinery-of-government changes. 

Supplies and services expenses decreased 
by 65 per cent to $10 million (2011–12: 
$28.6 million). The variance is primarily 
due to machinery-of-government 
changes. 

Operating Result from 
Continuing Operations (after 
tax) 

The surplus for 2012–13 is $0.642 
million. This reflects the net operating 
result from continuing operations, which 
is a deficit of $0.973 million mainly 
relating to depreciation charged on 
infrastructure assets situated in Northern 
Peninsula Area region, with $1.615 
million relating to an increase in asset 
revaluation reserve applied to 
infrastructure assets. 

Statement of Financial 
Position—Assets and Liabilities 

Table 5 Statement of Financial 
Position—Assets and 
Liabilities 

 2013 

$’000 

2012

$’000 

Total Assets 100,532 93,137 

Total Liabilities 7,675 11,415 

The increase in assets is mainly due to 
further construction of water and 
sewerage treatment infrastructure in Far 
North Queensland, yet to be transferred to 
councils. Liabilities have decreased due to 
the timing and value of payables as at 
year end.
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Comparison of financial result with budget 

Table 6 Statement of Comprehensive Income for the year ended 30 June 
2013 

Controlled items Notes 2012–13

Actual $’000 

2012–13 

Budget $’000 

Variance

$’000 

Income     

Departmental services revenue 1 125,689 223,432 (97,743) 

User charges 2 833 50 783 

Grants and other contributions  4,165 4,195 (30) 

Other revenue 3 1,065 0 1,065 

Total income  131,752 227,677 (95,925) 

Expenses     

Employee expenses  12,538 12,514 (24) 

Supplies and services 4 9,997 21,906 11,909 

Grants and subsidies 5 108,176 193,018 84,842 

Depreciation and amortisation  1,063 149 (914) 

Other expenses 6 951 28,283 27,332 

Total expenses  132,725 255,870 123,145 

Operating result from continuing 
operations 

 (973) (28,193) 27,220 

Notes: 

The variances for these controlled items can be explained as follows. 

1. Reduced income aligns with a reduction in expenditure. 

2. An increase in user charges is related mainly to costs recovered from de-amalgamating councils. 

3. The increase in other revenue is mainly due to the establishment of notional interest recognised on 
interest free loans provided to three councils. 

4. The reduction in supplies and services relates primarily to the conversion of some construction costs 
to infrastructure assets, and the realignment of funding as a result of revised forecast of projects 
delivered in Far North Queensland. 

5. The decrease in grants and subsidies is due to the need to defer some of the 2012–13 budget to 2013–
14 or beyond in order to fit in with revised project timing of councils to undertake approved works. 

6. The other expenses budget anticipated the completion and transfer of a number of water and sewerage 
treatment infrastructure plants being transferred to councils. The timing has been revised, taking into 
account the council’s capacity to own and operate the infrastructure. 

The actual versus budget analysis above, and actual results compared to prior year was 
considered by the Audit and Risk Management Committee, whereby machinery-of-
government changes were highlighted.  
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Chief Finance Officer statement 
In overseeing the financial activities of the Department of Local Government, Community 
Recovery and Resilience I assert that I fulfilled the responsibilities of the Financial 
Accountability Act 2009 including: 

 financial resource management including the establishment, maintenance and review of 
financial internal controls  

 budget management  

 preparation of financial information including annual financial statements to facilitate 
the discharge of the Department’s statutory reporting obligations  

 provision of advice on the effectiveness of accounting and financial management 
information systems and financial controls in meeting the Department’s requirements  

 provision of advice concerning the financial implications of, and financial risks to, the 
Department’s current and projected services  

 development of strategic options for the Department’s future financial management and 
capability.  

I provided a statement to the accountable officer confirming that the financial internal 
controls of the Department are operating efficiently, effectively and economically in 
accordance with Section 57 of the Financial and Performance Management Standard 2009. 

Michael McKee 
Chief Finance Officer 
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Our structure  
The Department’s two divisions are: 

 Local Government—which delivers program implementation and review including 
capacity building, support for local government financial sustainability, administration 
of the Local Government Grants and Subsidies Program and the network of regional 
offices in the Department’s northern and southern regions 

 Strategy, Governance and Resilience—which delivers the community recovery and 
resilience service area, in collaboration with other state agencies closely involved in 
natural disaster recovery and resilience initiatives. 

 

Figure 3 Organisational chart of the Department of Local Government, 
Community Recovery and Resilience as at 30 June 2013 
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Our governance 

Corporate governance 
framework and 
principles 
The aim of the Department’s integrated 
governance framework (illustrated at 
figure 4) is to support and guide all staff 
and ensure we perform our functions and 
responsibilities efficiently, comply with 
our obligations, and achieve outcomes for 
the benefit of Queenslanders. 

The framework is underpinned by the 
following principles: 

 transparency, efficiency and 
accountability 

 sustainable development and 
management of assets and 
infrastructure 

 stewardship 

 integrity 

 leadership. 

Implementation of the framework enhances 
our potential to perform efficiently and 
achieve our objectives, boosts public 
confidence in our decisions and ensures 
open and accountable adherence to our 
obligations and responsibilities. 

High standards of governance are set by 
the public sector principles and the related 
values described in the Public Service 
Ethics Act 1994 and the Queensland 
Government Code of Conduct 2012. 
Governance principles are also 
underpinned by the relevant legislation, 
policy, good governance practice, 
performance management and financial, 
human resource and legislative 

delegations—for example the Financial and 
Performance Management Standard 2009. 

Based on best practice public sector 
governance, the Department’s framework 
has well defined lines of responsibility, an 
executive committee structure and 
assurance activities that together ensure 
we meet our statutory requirements and 
perform with greater accountability and 
transparency. It includes the Executive 
Leadership Team and three special purpose 
governance committees that provide 
expert advice and assistance. 

The framework allows us to address 
emerging strategic issues and risks and to 
achieve our policy, program and 
regulatory objectives efficiently, 
effectively and ethically and supports the 
interconnected and equally important 
governance elements of: 

 solid leadership, management and 
oversight 

 sound organisational structure 

 accountability, integrity, transparency 
and efficiency 

 strong financial management 

 good people management 

 effective communication 

 integrated risk management 

 business improvement. 

The corporate governance framework is 
reviewed annually, or more frequently if 
required, to ensure it supports departmental 
decision making, achievement of outcomes 
and compliance with whole-of-government 
goals and expectations. 
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Figure 4 Our governance framework 
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Executive Leadership Team 

The Department’s Executive Leadership 
Team (ELT) is our key leadership, decision-
making and management forum. All 
business delivery areas of the Department 
are represented within the ELT, which 
promotes whole-of-department 
collaboration and ensures shared purpose 
in decision making. 

The ELT is supported by the Audit and 
Risk Management and Information  

Steering governance committees, and 
provides finance and asset management 
oversight. 

The role and the membership of the ELT 
and the committees are integral to 
establishment and maintenance of 
governance and accountability in our 
Department. Membership of governance 
committees ensures appropriate 
representation of business groups’ 
interests across the Department to support 
effective decision making, collaboration 
and integration.  

It is the responsibility of the ELT to 
determine if the governance and 
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committee arrangements are providing 
efficient and effective service delivery. 

Finance and Asset Management 
Oversight 

A key responsibility of the ELT is to 
provide finance and asset management 
oversight. To support this role, the Chief 
Finance Officer attended the ELT monthly 
to engage with the Committee regarding: 

 identifying budget and financial issues, 
including overseeing departmental 
budget processes (including Cabinet 
Budget Review Committee submissions 
and State Budget papers) 

 developing strategies and methodologies 
to improve resource usage and align 
with the Department’s objectives  

 monitoring business performance and 
use of resources through the monthly 
financial report  

 examining procurement issues. 

In addition, the Chief Finance Officer met 
with the Director-General and Deputy 
Directors-General as required. This flexible 
approach provides ongoing assurance 
regarding: 

 financial administration and reporting 

 legislative compliance 

 internal controls. 

ELT Membership 

Craig Evans AM, Director-General—
responsible for the efficient, effective and 
economic administration of the agency. 

Stephen Johnston, Deputy Director-
General, Local Government—responsible 
for driving the relationship between local 
governments and the State. 

Amanda Pafumi, Deputy Director-
General, Strategy, Governance and 
Resilience—responsible for leading and 

guiding the government’s work to build 
community resilience. 

Bill Gilmore, Director Finance and 
Funding—responsible for monitoring and 
enhancing the financial capability of 
local governments. 

Max Barrie, Director Program 
Implementation and Review—responsible 
for ensuring local government capability 
development is delivered in line with the 
needs of local governments throughout 
Queensland. 

Bronwyn Blagoev, Director Policy, Legal 
and Corporate Support—responsible for 
ensuring our legislative and policy 
frameworks meet the needs of the 
Department’s local government and 
community recovery and resilience 
portfolios and that the Department’s 
corporate environment provides for strong 
governance and accountability. 

Margot Furlonger, Director, Information 
Management—responsible for delivering 
information management, reporting, 
media and communications services. 

Jo Stephenson, Director Northern Region—
responsible for ensuring our service 
delivery in northern regional Queensland 
aligns with the needs of local governments. 

Jennie O’Connor, Acting Director, 
Southern Region—responsible for ensuring 
our service delivery in southern regional 
Queensland aligns with the needs of local 
governments. 

Gary Kleidon, Acting Director,  
De-amalgamation—responsible for the 
overarching coordination of the four 
Queensland council de-amalgamation 
projects. 
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Audit and Risk Management 
Committee 

Current members of the Audit and Risk 
Management Committee (ARMC) are: 

 Eric Muir, external member and Chair 
(who was remunerated $8,470 for his 
services) 

 Craig Evans AM, Director-General 

 Pat Morgan, external member and 
Executive Director, Corporate Services, 
DSDIP. 

Members of the ARMC during 2012–13 
also included: 

 Stephen Johnston, Deputy Director-
General; for the period August to 
September 2012 

 Bill Gilmore, Acting Deputy Director-
General; for the period August 2012 to 
February 2013 

 Ian Warren, Executive Director, 
Corporate Services, DSDIP; for the 
period August to December 2012. 

Invited guests include the Deputy 
Director-General, Strategy, Governance 
and Resilience; Head of Internal Audit; 
Chief Finance Officer; Director, 
Governance and Business Support; and 
Queensland Audit Office (QAO) officers. 

The ARMC Charter establishes the ARMC’s 
authority and responsibilities, and was 
prepared with reference to: 

 relevant provisions of the Financial 
and Performance Management 
Standard 2009 and the Financial 
Accountability Act 2009  

 Queensland Treasury and Trade Audit 
Committee Guidelines - Improving 
Accountability and Performance 

 better practice guidance issued by the 
Australian National Audit Office.  

The ARMC is a working group within the 
Department and is responsible to the 
Director-General. Its objective is to provide 
independent assurance and assistance to 
the Director-General on the Department’s: 

 risks, control and compliance 
frameworks 

 external accountability responsibilities 
as prescribed in legislation and 
standards.  

The ARMC does not replace or replicate 
established management responsibilities 
and delegations, the responsibilities of 
other executive management groups 
within the Department, or the reporting 
lines and responsibilities of functions 
associated with the risk management 
coordinator, internal audit or external 
audit. It has no executive powers, unless 
delegated to it by the Director-General. 

ARMC responsibilities 

 Risk management—reviewing the risk 
management framework; ensuring 
strategic and business risk registers are 
developed and managed; ensuring the 
effectiveness of the Department’s 
processes for identifying and escalating 
risks, particularly strategic risks; and 
reviewing the assessment and 
treatment of risks, particularly higher 
or extreme risks. 

 Internal control—reviewing through the 
internal and external audit functions the 
adequacy of the Department’s internal 
control structure and systems and 
policies, and reviewing through the 
Chief Finance Officer, whether the 
financial internal controls are operating 
efficiently, effectively and economically. 

 Financial statements—providing an 
independent review of the financial 
statements to ensure the integrity and 
transparency of the financial reporting 
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process and the appropriateness of 
accounting policies; and that assurance 
with respect to the accuracy and 
completeness of the financial 
statements is given by management. 

 Performance management—monitoring 
the effectiveness of our performance 
information and reviewing the 
Department’s compliance with the 
performance management and 
reporting requirements of the Financial 
Accountability Act 2009, the Financial 
and Performance Management 
Standard 2009 and the Annual 
Reporting Requirements for Queensland 
Government agencies. 

 Internal audit—reviewing the internal 
audit function, particularly in the areas 
of planning, monitoring and reporting 
so that the function provides sound 
assurance, relative to its resources, that 
key risks of the Department are 
adequately covered by the internal 
audit plan; and that internal audit 
findings and recommendations are 
promptly addressed by management. 

 Legislative, regulatory and other 
requirements—promoting a culture of 
lawful and ethical behaviour. 

 The ARMC consults with external audit 
on the function’s proposed strategy, 
audit plan and audit fees for the year; 
and reviews the findings and 
recommendations of external audit 
along with management’s response and 
implementation of such 
recommendations. The ARMC also 
ensures there is no material overlap 
between the internal and external audit 
functions. 

2012–13 ARMC achievements  

 Reviewed and endorsed the 
Department’s financial statements for 
the year ended 30 June 2012. 

 Reviewed and endorsed the Department’s 
Internal Audit Strategic Plan 2012–15, 
Annual Audit Plan 2012–13, Internal 
Audit Strategic Plan 2013–16 and 
Annual Audit Plan 2013–14. 

 Endorsed the ARMC Charter and the 
Internal Audit Charter, for 2012–13 
and 2013–14. 

 Received regular reports on internal 
audit activities including audits and 
reviews completed as part of the 
Annual Audit Plan 2012–13. 

 Reviewed and considered the QAO 
Strategic Audit Plan and QAO Client 
Strategy for the Department. 

 Considered the scheduling, status and 
findings of QAO financial and 
assurance audits. 

 Oversaw the implementation status of 
internal and external audit 
recommendations. 

 Endorsed the Department’s Risk 
Management Framework 2012 and 
received regular reports on the 
Department’s risk status. 

 Endorsed the Department’s Fraud and 
Corruption Control Plan 2012. 

The ARMC met on four occasions during 
2012–13. The ARMC considers that it 
observed the terms of its Charter and has 
had due regard to QTT’s Audit Committee 
Guidelines.  

Information Steering Committee 

The Information Steering Committee (ISC) 
(administered by DSDIP) is supported by 
the Information Management Sub-
Committee (IMSC) and provides 
information, communications and 
technology (ICT) governance and 
monitoring services to the Department 
under an SLA.  
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ISC takes a strategic approach to ICT 
portfolio management. This includes 
considering significant, high profile, high 
risk and whole-of-government investment 
proposals and initiatives.  

IMSC’s role is to manage operational 
matters, risks and issues and endorse low 
cost, non-complex ICT investment 
proposals. 

The Department’s ICT Roadmap—
considered by ISC and compliant with the 
Queensland Government Chief 
Information Officer’s whole-of-
government approach—provides: 

 an overview of the ICT initiatives for 
the current and following three years  

 an outline of high level costs for basic 
ICT services and labour 

 a summary of current and future key 
projects and infrastructure initiatives 

 ICT statistics  

 cost saving initiatives for the 2012–13 
and 2013–14 financial years. 

Ethics and integrity 
The Code of Conduct for the Queensland 
Public Service (the code) was updated by 
the Public Service Commission during 
2012–13, reflecting changes to the Public 
Sector Ethics Act 1994. 

Departmental officers uphold the values 
and ethical standards set out in the code, 
and are supported in doing so with: 

 access to appropriate education about 
public sector ethics, including access to 
an induction kit for managers to use 
with new staff  

 access to the code on the Department’s 
intranet and internet websites 

 access to training on ethics and 
integrity related matters—including 

‘Your Ethical Compass’ and ‘Ethical 
Decision Making: Good Decisions’ 
training from the Queensland 
Ombudsman’s Office 

 alignment of agency planning—
including strategic planning—and 
human resources policies, procedures 
and guidelines with the ethics 
principles and associated values 
prescribed by the code and the Public 
Sector Ethics Act 1994  

 advice on ethics matters through the 
Governance business unit 

 online tools, resources and support 
networks 

 management of complaints and alleged 
breaches of the code 

 close cooperation and liaison with the 
Crime and Misconduct Commission 

 trends and issues monitoring and 
implementing improvements based on 
previous cases and complaints 
experiences 

 encouragement to raise ethics and 
integrity matters in regular work unit 
discussion—highlighting employees’ 
individual responsibilities. 

The Department’s framework of integrity 
policies was enhanced during 2012–13. 
Policies and procedures for making public 
interest disclosures and complaints 
management were reviewed and new 
policies developed for contact with 
lobbyists and managing official 
misconduct. The Fraud and Corruption 
Prevention Plan was also developed and 
implemented. 

In addition, good governance, 
accountability and integrity measures 
were incorporated into business planning 
templates. Performance and capability 
plan templates were also enhanced to 
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incorporate adherence to the requirements 
of the code. 

Risk management 
The Department’s risk management 
approach includes objective risk 
identification, analysis, assessment, 
evaluation, treatment, monitoring, 
ownership and review.  

Through this process, which is conducted 
in line with Australian Standards and QTT 
guidelines, the Department is assured that: 

 all departmental strategies and 
objectives are pursued with a common 
intention  

 trends and patterns can be identified 
and appropriately responded to  

 an overall picture of the risk profile is 
evident and has utility  

 resourcing decisions are made with an 
objective understanding of influencing 
factors  

 a coordinated response to departmental 
risks and opportunities is provided  

 business planning and decision-making 
is objectively pursued in line with the 
Department’s risk profile, tolerance and 
mitigation capability. 

In 2012–13 risk management activities 
included: 

 implementation of a new risk 
management framework designed for 
the Department and tailored to the risk 
attitude, approach and reporting/ 
discussion preferences of the ELT 

 increasing integration of risk 
management into business planning 
processes, demonstrating development 
towards integration of risk management 
into business decision-making 

 initial trend analysis (risk levels and 
effectiveness of mitigations) and 
implementation of a regular risk status 
report 

 consideration of the effects of 
machinery-of-government changes in 
departmental services scope, focus, 
resourcing and priorities on the 
Department’s risk profile and risk 
management approach. 

Accountability 

External accountability 
mechanisms 

Auditor-General’s Report 8: 2012–13, 
Online service delivery 

The Auditor-General’s Report 8: 2012–13, 
Online service delivery was tabled in 
Parliament on 19 March 2013. The report 
notes that strong and growing demand 
exists for online public sector services, as 
they can provide reduced transaction 
times, at any time, any place and on any 
device. The audit examined the public 
sector’s use of online services and 
optimisation of information technology.  

The report found that the public sector is 
not meeting the increased customer 
expectations of more online services, public 
services cost more to deliver than necessary 
and higher transaction costs are incurred 
when dealing with the public sector. 

To address the lack of a central statewide 
strategy to guide departments in aligning 
their service delivery mechanisms with 
customer expectations and the lack of 
systems to accurately record and monitor 
service delivery cost, the whole-of-
government One Stop Shop program is 
being developed. Supported by our 
Department, it is intended to create a 
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customer-centric service delivery model, 
across the public sector focusing on the 
customers’ perspective. 

The Department is working in conjunction 
with Shared Services Queensland (SSQ) to 
address online risks, including security 
design, as well as authentication solutions 
for complex transactions. 

The Department will further progress cost-
effective technology solutions to provide 
secure online services upon receipt of an 
‘agency roadmap’ from SSQ, which is 
intended to ensure consistency in 
implementing the One Stop Shop agenda, 
and further associated advice and 
materials.  The Department completed the 
mapping of six services.  

Auditor-General’s Report 9: 2012–13, 
Fraud risk management 

The Auditor-General’s Report 9: 2012-13, 
Fraud risk management was tabled in 
Parliament on 19 March 2013 and  
examined whether three agencies (the 
Department was not a selected agency) are 
effectively managing fraud risks and 
assessed the control measures for 
preventing, detecting and responding to 
fraud. No substantiated fraud was 
discovered during the audit and 
recommendations of the audit assessment 
are directed to all agencies to help 
improve fraud resistance.  

The department is committed to active 
fraud and corruption prevention, and has:  

 reviewed its fraud and corruption 
controls in May 2012, concluding the 
Department has a sound internal 
control framework and appropriate 
departmental policies, procedures and 
internal control processes in place 

 a current Fraud and Corruption 
Prevention Plan in place, with the 
annual review of this plan underway  

 commenced a self-assessment of fraud 
risk and development of a data 
analytics activity. 

Auditor-General’s Report 10: 2012–13, 
Results of audits: Local government 
entities 2011–12  

The Auditor-General’s Report 10: 2012–
13, Results of audits: Local government 
entities 2011–12 was tabled in Parliament 
on 16 April 2013. The report recognises 
that local governments operate 
autonomously and are directly responsible 
to their communities. It summarises the 
results of the QAO audits of the financial 
statements for 2011–12 of the 73 local 
governments, and of the entities they 
control. 

For 2011–12, audit opinions were required 
for 150 local government entities: at the 
time of the report 135 opinions had been 
issued, including on 68 of the 73 council 
financial statements. The majority of audit 
opinions issued (92 per cent) were noted 
as being unmodified, confirming that 
those financial statements were prepared 
according to the requirements and/or 
accounting standards. 

Qualified opinions were issued for six 
councils and five related entities for 2011–
12, as compared to eight councils and four 
related entities in 2010–11. The report 
noted the number of unmodified audit 
opinions for the sector is consistent with 
the previous year, demonstrating that it 
takes a number of years for entities to 
resolve accounting issues of the prior year. 
The following key comments are provided 
from the report: 

 changes resulting from asset valuation 
processes are still the primary reason 
for adjustments to draft financial 
statements submitted for audit 
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 local governments continue to be the 
least timely, and therefore the least 
accountable, of the three tiers of 
government  

 under the new Local Government 
Regulation 2012, applicable in 2012–
13, the deadline for audited financial 
statements was brought forward by one 
month to 31 October  

 for internal control frameworks, 10 
councils did not have an internal audit 
function during 2011–12, with this 
being a legislative requirement since 1 
July 2010 

 a qualified opinion was issued on the 
state’s Natural Disaster Relief and 
Recovery Arrangements (NDRRA) 
acquittals to the Australian 
Government in respect of the 2009–10, 
2010–11 and 2011–12 financial years. 
This related primarily to lack of 
necessary documentation to support 
eligibility of council claims, with 
systemic issues subsequently corrected 
through stronger control and better 
oversight by the QRA 

 of the 68 councils audited, 16 were 
assessed as being at higher risk of 
becoming unsustainable according to 
key financial sustainability measures. 
This included 11 of the 14 Indigenous 
councils audited. Reviewing the sector 
as a whole, the financial sustainability 
risk for 2011–12 was rated as low. 

In 2012–13 discussions were held with the 
Valuer-General regarding developing an 
agreed methodology for valuation of 
infrastructure assets and the Valuer-
General commenced the process for 
establishing an approved panel of external 
valuers. Discussions are also planned with 
the LGAQ Roads Alliance Project. 

The Department considered the Auditor-
General’s recommendation regarding 

granting ministerial extensions to 
reporting deadlines, concluding that local 
governments would benefit from having 
12 months to adjust to the new reporting 
timelines before introducing 
‘extraordinary circumstances’ assessment. 

The Department drafted and published 
online the Financial Management 
Sustainability Guidelines 2013 following 
consultation with the QAO and QTT in line 
with the Auditor-General’s 
recommendation to provide councils with 
detailed guidance on the calculation of the 
three sustainability measures well in 
advance of councils having to present 
them for audit in 2012–13.  

The Department continues to work with 
the QTT to assist councils in refining the 
assumptions used in their long-term 
forecasts, highlighting the impact today’s 
budgetary decisions have on a council’s 
long-term financial sustainability. This 
includes issuing the Financial 
Management Sustainability Guidelines 
2013. Further collaborative work is 
anticipated in early 2014 with the release 
of the revised QTT Long-Term Financial 
Forecast Model. 

On occasion the Department is also the 
subject of review by other external 
accountability mechanisms including: 

 the Queensland Ombudsman’s Office  

 the Crime and Misconduct Commission  

 Estimates Committees, Public Accounts 
and Public Works Committee and other 
committees of the Queensland 
Parliament 

 the Coroner. 

Internal accountability 

Internal audit 

The Department receives internal audit 
services—including for the Head of 
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Internal Audit—under a service level 
agreement with DSDIP, providing 
independent and objective advice directly 
to the Director-General.  

Through its assurance activities, Internal 
Audit aids the Director-General in the 
discharge of his functions and duties as 
accountable officer. 

The scope of internal audit coverage is set 
out in the Strategic Internal Audit Plan 
2012–15. This plan follows a risk-based 
methodology, balancing emerging issues 
against reviews of core business and 
transactional processes.  

Following the machinery-of-government 
changes in 2012, the Internal Audit 
Charter and Strategic Audit Plan/Internal 
Audit Plan were repositioned for the 
Department. During 2012–13:  

 Internal Audit operated under an 
ARMC-endorsed and Director-General 
approved charter consistent with 
accepted auditing and ethical 
standards, including the International 
Professional Practices Framework 
approved by the Institute of Internal 
Auditors and better practice guidance 
provided by the Australian National 
Audit Office 

 systems were in place to ensure the 
effective, efficient and economical 
operation of the function, including the 
oversight role of the ARMC and regular 
performance reporting of progress 

 the internal audit function was 
independent of management and the 
authorised auditors, with direct 
responsibility to the Director-General 
on all audit related matters 

 to identify any significant operational 
and financial risk, and mitigation 
strategies, Internal Audit periodically 
reviewed the Department’s risk register; 

engaged in conversations with 
management; analysed results of 
audits; and participated in ARMC 
discussions regarding the Department’s 
management of risk 

 Internal Audit had due regard for QTT’s 
Audit Committee Guidelines. 

From late September 2012 the Head of 
Internal Audit was Jo Buckley CA B.Com. 

In 2012–13 achievements for Internal 
Audit included: 

 providing advisory services to the 
Department in order to improve risk 
management; control and governance; 
and business operations  

 completing audits and reviews as per 
the approved annual audit plan, 
resulting in appropriate management 
recommendations for improving 
governance processes and business 
operations  

 proactive follow-up with management 
regarding their timely implementation 
of internal and external audit 
recommendations 

 providing secretariat services as 
outlined in the ARMC Charter 

 adopting a co-sourced service delivery 
model for the provision of an effective 
internal audit function. 

Fraud and corruption 

The Department has zero tolerance for 
fraud and corruption. This zero tolerance 
is both for behaviour which is fraudulent 
or corrupt, as well as any systemic 
attitudes or views that might support such 
activity. The rationale, approach and 
integration of prevention and control 
measures to address fraud and corruption 
are detailed in our Fraud and Corruption 
Prevention Plan. 
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The Department seeks and receives 
information about possible fraud and 
corruption through control measures and 
reporting mechanisms. Concerns about 
such matters can be raised by staff or 
community members and may be directed 
to the Department’s Governance unit by 
mail or telephone. 

Policies and procedures for making and 
receiving public interest disclosures, 
complaints management and managing 
official misconduct are included in the 
Department’s integrity framework. The 
Crime and Misconduct Liaison Officer 
ensures matters involving fraud and 
corruption are promptly reported to the 
Crime and Misconduct Commission. The 
Department’s Finance and Internal Audit 
areas also ensure robust internal controls 
are in place and that public funds and 
resources are properly acquitted.  

State procurement policy 

The Department is committed to ensuring 
good practice in procurement, and 
throughout 2012–13 adhered to the State 
Procurement Policy 2010. From 1 July 
2013 the State Procurement Policy 2010 
was replaced with the Queensland 
Procurement Policy 2013. Under a SLA 
with DSDIP procurement services and 
advice are provided to the Department.  

The procurement framework aims to: 

 develop and maintain procurement 
systems and procedures, aimed at 
maximising value for money and 
reducing the cost of procurement 

 align procurement planning with 
strategic and business planning to 
deliver on government priorities 

 foster practices to achieve value for 
money with probity and accountability 

 focus procurement on outcomes rather 
than processes 

 encourage the development of 
procurement expertise. 

Information management and 
recordkeeping 

Good recordkeeping practices assist the 
Department to efficiently capitalise on 
departmental knowledge and experience. 
It also supports consistency, continuity, 
efficiency and productivity in customer 
service and program delivery, 
management and administration. 

The ongoing use and maintenance of best 
practice records management policy, 
procedures and systems—including an 
electronic document records management 
system (eDRMS) called TRIM—enables the 
Department to capture, maintain and 
protect the accuracy and reliability of its 
records for as long as they are required to 
support business, regulatory, social and 
cultural needs. The TRIM system provides 
a secure, effective and efficient 
management of correspondence, 
documents and records. 

The Department uses the whole-of-
government SAP and Aurion systems for 
finance and human resource management 
respectively. 

Committed to meeting our responsibilities 
under the Public Records Act 2002, the 
Department protects information assets 
through our Recordkeeping Policy. This 
ensures that departmental records are the 
basis for organisational accountability, 
current and future policy formation and 
management decision making. It supports 
compliance with legislative and regulatory 
requirements and documentation of 
departmental activities, developments and 
achievements.  

Our records management approach 
includes: 
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 implementing and maintaining a 
Records Management Framework that 
includes clear and concise policy, 
procedures and work instructions 

 managing programs and recordkeeping 
systems that comply with legislation 
and government directives including 
collaboration and sharing tools  

 preparing to implement paper lite 
approaches to records management by 
implementing the following key 
principals over the next three years: 

– born digital, stay digital strategy—
new documents received or created 
should remain in digital format 

– implement paper lite approaches to 
records management including 
digitisation and electronic processing 

– ensure eDRMS is in place and use 
maximised in all business groups 

– use of collaboration and sharing 
tools that incorporate records 
management 

– develop and implement retention and 
disposal schedules as well as archives 
management and reduction strategies 

– use cultural reform to drive cross-
agency collaboration including 
development and sharing of policies 
and training initiatives such as clear 
desk and government records 
awareness 

– develop baseline storage 
requirements. 

 establishing realistic performance goals 
and effective monitoring programs 

 leading cultural reform by creating 
supportive recordkeeping awareness 
resources and system training to provide 
proactive staff assistance, guidance and 
awareness of legislative responsibilities 

 retention and disposal of public records 
in accordance with the Public Records 

Act 2002 and the General Retention and 
Disposal Schedule for Administrative 
Records—a departmental Retention and 
Disposal Schedule was developed during 
2012–13 and is being reviewed by 
Queensland State Archives. 

Commissions and 
tribunals 
We administer or provide secretariat 
services to the following entities that 
provide services to and review the conduct 
of local governments. 

Queensland Local Government 
Grants Commission 

Functions and responsibilities 

The Queensland Local Government Grants 
Commission (the Commission) makes 
recommendations to the Minister 
regarding the finances of local governing 
bodies including the distribution of 
Commonwealth financial assistance, 
holding inquiries and investigating 
financial matters. The Commission collects 
data from councils annually and uses 
other State and Commonwealth data to 
inform annual Commonwealth Financial 
Assistance Grant recommendations. 

Achievements in 2012–13 

December 4 2012 saw the first meeting of 
the new Commission, chaired by former 
QLGGC member and former Burdekin 
Mayor, Ms Lyn McLaughlin. Other 
members appointed were: Mr Stephen 
Johnson (Deputy Chair), Ms Joy Leishman, 
Mr Kevin Wormald, Mr Brendan 
McNamara and Mr John Rauber. 
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The Commission approved a draft 
Financial Assistance Grant allocation for 
2013–14 in June 2013. 

Under the Commonwealth Local 
Government (Financial Assistance) Act 
1995 the Commission visited 13 councils 
in 2012–13 as part of its Council Visits 
Program. The visits benefit councils as 
they provide: 

 a brief overview of the Commission’s 
activities, including the distribution of 
the Financial Assistance Grant 

 an opportunity for councils to inform 
the Commission of the unique features 
and challenges they face in providing 
services to the community. 

Remuneration costs for 2012–13 

Total remuneration costs for 2012–13 
were $15,787. 

Local Government Remuneration 
and Discipline Tribunal 
(provided secretariat support) 

Functions and responsibilities 

The Local Government Remuneration and 
Discipline Tribunal (the Tribunal) is an 
independent body responsible for deciding 
the remuneration payable to local 
government mayors, deputy mayors and 
councillors as outlined in section 183 of 
the Local Government Act 2009 and in 
accordance with section 242 of the Local 
Government (Operations) Regulation 2012. 
The Tribunal also has a discipline function 
to hear and determine the most serious 
complaints of councillor misconduct. 

Achievements in 2012–13 

Remuneration 

Following its annual review of local 
government categories, the Tribunal 
retained the ten categories originally 
established. It also decided not to vary the 
allocation of any council from the 
category to which they were previously 
assigned. Continuing to adopt a cautious 
approach in setting remuneration levels 
for local government elected 
representatives, the Tribunal increased 
remuneration levels by 2.5 per cent on 
and from 1 January 2013. In response to 
submissions concerning the remuneration 
level for councillors in category 1, the 
Tribunal increased the remuneration level 
for such councillors to 16 per cent of the 
reference rate, derived from the base 
annual salary payable to a member of the 
Queensland Legislative Assembly. 

Discipline 

During 2012–13 the Tribunal finalised 
seven complaints alleging serious 
misconduct. Four complaints related to 
allegations of breaches of confidentiality, 
one concerned misuse of information 
coupled with failure to update registers of 
interest, another also related to failure to 
update registers of interest, and one 
concerned a breach of trust. Five of these 
complaints were sustained by the Tribunal. 
One was discontinued due to the matter 
having parallels with other court action 
and the individual concerned no longer 
being a councillor. The Tribunal 
determined that it was not in the public 
interest, given cost considerations, to 
pursue the matter. The seventh complaint 
was not sustained. 
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Remuneration costs for 2012–13 

In 2012–13 $13,883 was paid to Tribunal 
members. This included: 

 $10,482 paid for the Tribunal’s 
remuneration function; these costs are 
not recoverable under the Local 
Government Act 2009 

 $3,401 paid for the Tribunal’s 
discipline function; section 186 of the 
Local Government Act 2009 allows for 
the State Government to recover these 
types of costs from the relevant council 
and all of the $3,401 was recovered. 

Regional Conduct Review Panels 

Functions and responsibilities 

Regional Conduct Review Panels are an 
independent mechanism responsible for 
hearing and deciding complaints of 
misconduct against councillors.  

There are 31 members appointed across 
two Regional Conduct Review Panels for 
the State. 

Achievements in 2012–13 

In 2012–13 the Department handled 50 
complaints of misconduct lodged against 
councillors. Of these, 10 complaints were 
referred to the Regional Conduct Review 
Panels for determination, with five closed 
by 30 June 2013. Of the five matters 
finalised, two allegations of misconduct 
were sustained. 

Remuneration costs for 2012–13 

For the 2012–13 period, $111,315 was 
paid to panel members, of which 96 per 
cent was recovered from councils as 
provided for by section 191 of the Local 
Government Act 2009. 
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Our workplace, our people 

Our workforce profile 

As at 30 June 2013 our Department had 
102.45 full-time equivalent staff with a 
headcount of 108. 

The average age of our male employees is 
50.5 years and our female employees’ 
average age is 43.8 years. 

Our Department’s permanent staff 
percentage was 80.6 per cent, comprised 
of both full-time and part-time staff.  

The permanent staff retention rate for 
2012–13 was 73.6 per cent and the 
permanent staff separation rate was 16.4 
per cent, which was in part due to some 
staff accepting voluntary redundancy 
packages.

 

Table 7 Representation of workforce target groups as at 30 June 2013 

Key groups Headcount Percentage of 
workforce 2012-13 

Men 49 45.4% 

Women 59 54.6% 

Non-English speaking background 8 7.4% 

Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander people 2 1.9% 

People with a disability 5 4.6% 

 

Table 8 Representation of female workforce by classification level as at 30 
June 2013 

Key groups Headcount Percentage of 
workforce 2012-13 

Women in SO classification or above 3 2.8% 

Women in AO8/PO6 classification (or equivalent) 10 9.3% 

Women in AO7/PO5 classification (or equivalent) 9 8.3% 

Women in AO6/PO4 classification (or equivalent) 9 8.3% 
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Figure 5 Staff annual earning, showing the headcount of male and female 
staff in earning ranges 
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Figure 6 Staff annual earning, showing the proportion of male and female 
staff in earning ranges 
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Managing our 
workforce 

Workforce planning 

The Department recognises the importance 
of building and sustaining an agile and 
flexible workforce to meet current and 
future service delivery needs. During 2012–
13, the Department implemented human 
resource policies, strategies and programs 
that enabled the attraction, development 
and retention of a range of highly skilled 
employees focused on service delivery. We 
continued to build a culture that values 
and embraces health and safety, leadership 
and management capability, performance 
management, diversity and encourages 
work-life balance.  

Attraction, recruitment and 
retention 

During 2012–13 the Department gained 
the function of community recovery and 
resilience and commenced appropriate 
recruitment activities to service this 
function. 

Employee performance 
management framework, 
including induction and 
development 

The Department continued to implement its 
performance management model which 
integrates business planning, the Capability 
and Leadership Framework (CLF) and 
career development, and includes 
performance management training for 
managers. 

The online induction process for all new 
employees and their managers provides 
broad information about the Department 
and explains expected behaviours and 

performance. It includes links to 
information on our Department’s structure 
and key personnel, conditions of 
employment, behaviour at work, safety at 
work and keeping information secure. 
Managers are required to utilise the 
induction kit guidelines to conduct local 
business unit level induction over a three 
month period that includes procedures, 
policies and any specific needs of the 
business area. Managers and supervisors 
are encouraged at this point to develop a 
performance and capability plan for the 
new employee outlining roles, 
responsibilities, performance expectations 
and professional development goals. 

The Department acted as lead agency in 
the development and release of an Ethics 
and Integrity/Code of Conduct online 
training module to meet legislative 
requirements for annual education and 
training. The module was communicated 
to all managers and employees, with 
managers receiving intensive training to 
enable them to optimise online and 
collaborative learning within their teams. 

There were no staff disciplinary actions or 
suspensions made during 2012–13. There 
was one employee complaint lodged, 
however this was found to be 
unsubstantiated. 

Early retirement, redundancy, 
retrenchment and voluntary 
separation 

A program of voluntary redundancy offers 
was implemented during 2012–13. During 
the period, 16 employees received an offer 
of voluntary redundancy. All 16 
employees accepted voluntary 
redundancies packages at a cost of $1.2 
million.  
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Developing our 
workforce 
The performance and learning planning 
(PLP) process continued in 2012–13 with 
improvements included in the manager 
and employee guidelines and new 
streamlined templates. The PLP process is 
strongly linked to recruitment, selection 
and induction activities to ensure timely 
and quality embedding of new staff, 
outlining their responsibilities and 
entitlements in order to support improved 
and ongoing performance aligned to 
business strategy. 

The Department provided access to a suite 
of sector-wide and in-house learning and 
leadership development activities aligned 
to the CLF. These included a range of 
corporate, specialist, management and 
leadership capability development 
programs covering topics including 
business planning, coaching, complaints 
management, culture-wise practice, ethical 
and good decision-making, financial and 
project management and recordkeeping.  

In addition, the Department supports 
executive leaders to participate in regular 
professional development workshops 
brokered by the PSC. 

A number of staff accessed study and 
research assistance to gain or improve 
qualifications in capabilities related to 
their professional roles including masters 
and bachelor degrees in leadership, 
business, economics, arts and accounting. 

Supporting women’s career 
development 

Women’s development and career 
networking is supported. During 2012–13 
one of the Department’s senior women 

attended a national women leaders’ 
symposium and women’s enrolments 
represented 38 per cent of centrally-
funded learning activities. 

Supporting our 
workforce 

Health and wellbeing 

The Department takes the health and 
wellbeing of all staff seriously and supports 
initiatives that provide for increased health 
and wellbeing in the workforce. We also 
encourage staff to make positive lifestyle 
changes to achieve better personal health 
outcomes that in turn contribute to an 
engaged and healthy workforce. 

The Department participated in the whole-
of-government Workplace Health 
Initiative Network, which aims to identify 
initiatives to strengthen health leadership 
and maintain commitment to health and 
wellbeing initiatives across the public 
service. It also aims to increase awareness 
of and access to best-practice information, 
tools and resources. 

The Department offered the following 
programs to assist employee health and 
wellbeing: 

 annual influenza vaccinations 
(approximately 42 per cent of staff 
were immunised) 

 subsidised participation in active 
events such as the corporate games  

 workstation assessments 

 finance focused programs such as 
QSuper, QInvest and salary packaging 
information sessions 

 early intervention programs, which 
have had particular success in dealing 
with conflict and interpersonal issues 
that may lead to psychological injuries. 
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The Workplace Health and Safety Officer, 
now Safety Adviser, monitors incidents 
and provides advice to the Work Health 
Safety Committee as required.  

The Department also provided further 
support to staff such as: 

 supporting staff who have caring 
responsibilities as per the Carers 
(Recognition) Act 2008 by embedding 
the principles of the Act in our 
workplace 

 participating in consultation on the 
draft Queensland Disability Plan being 
coordinated by the Department of 
Communities, Child Safety and 
Disability Services following the 
National Disability Strategy 2010–
2020 Report to the Council of 
Australian Governments 2012; which 
includes the first implementation plan: 
Laying the Groundwork 2011–2014. 
Key actions for all Departments are: 

– influencing the mainstream support 
system through periodic reviews of 
COAG national agreements and 
partnerships 

– involving people with a disability in 
the development and implementation 
of government policies and 
programs, not just disability-specific 
policies and programs. 

Work–life balance 

The Department’s human resources 
policies and processes as well as whole-of-
government arrangements provide work 
and life balance options to assist 
employees who are responsible for the 
care of elderly parents or children, 
employees who have study commitments, 
those older employees who simply want to 
ease themselves into retirement or 
employees with other personal and 
lifestyle commitments.  

One employee participated in purchased 
leave arrangements during the 2012–13 
financial year. 

Other options available to employees to 
address their work and life balance needs 
include: 

 flexible hours of work arrangements 
including the accrual or purchasing of 
special leave or unpaid leave for 
specific purposes 

 a compressed working week where 
employees reduce the number of 
working days in their work cycle by 
working longer hours each day  

 part-time arrangements including job 
sharing where two or more employees 
make a voluntary agreement to share 
one full-time job 

 telecommuting which allows employees 
to meet their work obligations while 
working from home or outside of the 
central workplace.  

Work Health Safety Committee 

The Work Health Safety Committee’s roles 
and responsibilities are to: 

 assist in developing standards, policies 
and procedures, training programs and 
engagement of consultants relating to 
work health and safety 

 facilitate cooperation between the 
Director-General and employees 
regarding health and safety issues. 

Under a SLA with DSDIP work health 
safety services are provided to the 
Department. The WHSC services the 
Department and DSDIP in recognition of 
the shared corporate support arrangements 
and the similarity of WHS issues 
encountered. 

In 2012–13, revised policy, procedures and 
forms were published on the Department’s 
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intranet and an audit of fire safety 
compliance was conducted.  

The Department has commenced 
implementing its recommendations 
including reviewing emergency response 
teams, training for these teams and 
restocking first aid kits. 

The Department had four new workers’ 
compensation claims accepted during the 
year and has a premium rate of 
approximately a quarter of the industry 
average, reflecting the Department’s pro-
active approach to injury management 
and early intervention. 
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General information 

These financial statements cover the Department of Local Government, Community 
Recovery and Resilience (the department). 

The Department of Local Government, Community Recovery and Resilience is a Queensland 
Government department established under the Public Service Act 2008. 

The department is controlled by the State of Queensland which is the ultimate parent. 

The head office and principal place of business of the department is: 

 Level 17 
 Mineral House 
 41 George Street 
 Brisbane Queensland 4000 

A description of the nature of the department’s operations and its principal activities is 
included in the notes to the financial statements. 

Amounts shown in these financial statements may not add to the correct sub-totals or 
totals due to rounding. 

For information in relation to the department’s financial statements please call +61 7 3225 
8680, email info@dlgcrr.qld.gov.au or visit the department’s website 
www.dlgcrr.qld.gov.au.  

  

 

 

 

 



Department of Local Government, Community Recovery and Resilience
STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
for the year ended 30 June 2013

Income from continuing operations
Revenue

Departmental services revenue
User charges
Grants and other contributions
Other revenues

Total revenue

Total income from continuing operations

Expenses from continuing operations
Employee expenses
Supplies and services
Grants and subsidies
Depreciation and amortisation
Impairment losses
Other expenses

Total expenses from continuing operations

Operating result from continuing operations

Other comprehensive income
Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to operating result
Increase in asset revaluation surplus

Total comprehensive income

The accompanying notes form part of these statements.

-21

(23,124)(973)

833

28,621

702

3,053
2,353

357,351108,176

1,065
446,919

4

131,752

12 18,697

434,544                 

8

470,043

4,385

11

4,165

132,725

1,063
-

10

1,615

6

9

Notes
2013

446,919

59,968

131,752

125,689

7,288

2012

2
3

951

$'000 $'000 

9,997
12,538

642

5

(23,124)
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Department of Local Government, Community Recovery and Resilience
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
as at 30 June 2013

Notes

Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Receivables
Inventories
Other assets

Total current assets

Non-current assets
Receivables
Intangible assets
Property, plant and equipment

Total non-current assets
Total assets

Current liabilities
Payables
Accrued employee benefits
Other liabilities

Total current liabilities

Non-current liabilities
Payables
Other liabilities

Total non-current liabilities
Total liabilities

Net assets

Equity
Asset revaluation surplus
Contributed equity
Accumulated surplus

Total equity

The accompanying notes form part of these statements.

-

(338,361)

11,415
-

6,186

3,767

11,415

18,303

44,893

74,657

537

81,722

7,108

93,137

13,947

2012

13

$'000 

160,943

1,683
-

18,303

-

10,493
62,446

(340,062)
424,899

57,803
-

1,288

14

15

20 -

Restated

92,857

19,918

4

-

401,780

20

18

103,140

30

103,140

2011

8,987

$'000 

60,236
-

62,071

52,913

23,087

The department has made a retrospective adjustment as a consequence of a correction of error and therefore in accordance with 
AASB 101 Presentation of Financial Statements  has presented a Statement of FInancial Position as at the beginning of the comparative period as at 1 
July 2011.  Refer to Note 30 for details.

14

17

18

19

21

16

- -

$'000 

9,732

17,714

3,602

57,803

2013

82,818
100,532

-

86,286

5,434
7,979

70,050
75,155

21,694

As at 1 July

19,115
584

2,973
20,110

-

922

7,663

7,675
567

92,857

-

81,722
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
for the year ended 30 June 2013

Balance as at 1 July

Restated balance as at 1 July
Operating result from continuing operations
Other comprehensive income

Total comprehensive income for the year

Transactions with owners as owners:

Net transactions with owners as owners
Total equity as at 30 June 

Balance as at 1 July

Restated balance as at 1 July

Operating result from continuing operations
Total comprehensive income for the year

Transactions with owners as owners:

Net transactions with owners as owners
Total equity as at 30 June 

The accompanying notes form part of these statements.

1,615
(973)

- Increase in asset revaluation surplus

- Prior year machinery-of-Government adjustments (note 17)

$'000

$'000

81,722

5
103,145

-

18,303

1,615
1,615

-
(28,948)

$'000

10,493

18,303 (338,361) 401,780 81,722

(340,062) 424,904

-

Total

Contributed 
equity

Accumulated 
surplus Total

5
103,140

-

18,303 (338,361)

424,899

642

-10,534

1,701 - 1,701

$'000 $'000

Accumulated 
surplus

92,857

(340,062)
$'000

30,649 - 30,649

-
-

- Net equity injection from consolidated fund (note 2)

(973)

$'000

-

-

-

-

19,918

(41) -

-

(23,124)

10,534
(41)

10,493

- (28,948)

18,303

Department of Local Government, Community Recovery and Resilience

$'000

(23,124)

Asset 
revaluation 

surplus
(note 21)

Asset 
revaluation 

surplus
(note 21)

(23,124)
- - (23,124)

- Effect of retrospective correction of error

(973)

2013

2012

- Net equity injection from consolidated fund (note 2)

Contributed 
equity

- Assets received/(transferred) (machinery-of-Government 
change) (note 1(ad))

- -

401,780

10,493 62,446

-
-

-

- Transfer of negative contributed equity

18,303 - 63,419 81,722
- 338,361 (338,361) -
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Department of Local Government, Community Recovery and Resilience
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
for the year ended 30 June 2013

Cash flows from operating activities
Inflows:

Departmental services receipts
User charges
Grants and other contributions
Recoveries from other departments -
GST input tax credits from Australian Taxation Office      
GST collected from customers  
Interest receipts
Other inflows

Outflows:
Employee expenses
Supplies and services
Grants and subsidies
Insurance premiums
GST paid to suppliers
GST remitted to ATO
Other outflows

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities
Inflows:

Sales of property, plant and equipment
Loans and advances redeemed

Outflows:
Payments for intangible assets
Payments for property, plant and equipment

Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities
Inflows:

Equity injections
Outflows:

Equity withdrawals
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities

Net increase (decrease) in cash held
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of financial year

Cash at end of financial year

The accompanying notes form part of these statements.

44,279

(61,979)

(344)

(12,607)

(2)

2,803

14,472
4,385

(242)

(1,103)

(27,204)

4,316

-

(500)

(52,338)

233
189

-

7,077

(13,942)

(6,225)

3

(45,365)22

(26,647)

10,974

11,637

10,534

(746)

(1,086)

2,973

1,103

(11,447)

(108,176)

11,887

(74)
(402,887)

435,945

(22,167)

702

2013

2,973

30,838

Notes

7,166

886

434

126,409

144

$'000 

68

2012
$'000 

44,893

(12,783)

(41,920)

13

(189)
30,649

13,947
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Department of Local Government, Community Recovery and Resilience 
NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
for the year ended 30 June 2013 
 
Objectives and principal activities of the Department of Local Government, Community Recovery and 
Resilience. 
 
The objectives of the Department of Local Government, Community Recovery and Resilience are that: 
- councils have the authority and capacity to manage their own interests, to be financially sustainable and 

accountable 
- councils have access to high quality capacity building programs and resources 
- recovery projects are delivered and resilience activities implemented to mitigate the effect of natural disaster 

events. 
 
1. Summary of significant accounting policies 
 
(a) Statement of compliance 

 
The department has prepared these financial statements in compliance with section 42 of the Financial and 
Performance Management Standard 2009. 
 
These financial statements are general purpose financial statements and have been prepared on an accrual basis 
in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards and Interpretations.  In addition, the financial statements 
comply with Queensland Treasury and Trade’s Minimum Reporting Requirements for the year ending 
30 June 2013, and other authoritative pronouncements. 
 
With respect to compliance with Australian Accounting Standards and Interpretations, the department has applied 
those requirements applicable to not-for-profit entities, as the department is a not-for-profit department. Except 
where stated the historical cost convention is used. 
 
(b) The reporting entity 
 
The financial statements include the value of all income, expenses, assets, liabilities and equity of the department. 
 
The major departmental services undertaken by the department are disclosed in paragraph 1(ac). 
 
2012–13 Changes to the reporting entity 
 
On 4 February 2013, as a result of the Administrative Arrangements Amendment Order (No.1) 2013, the 
department was renamed the Department of Local Government, Community Recovery and Resilience.  
 
2011–12 Changes to the reporting entity 
 
As a result of Administrative Arrangements Order (No. 4) 2012, dated 3 April 2012 and effective 1 May 2012, the 
Department of Local Government and Planning (DLGP) was renamed the Department of Local Government (DLG). 
The Planning (excluding Building Codes Queensland) and Strategy and Governance functions were transferred to 
the Department of State Development, Infrastructure and Planning (DSDIP). Building Codes Queensland was 
transferred to the Department of Housing and Public Works (DHPW) and Animal Management (Cats and Dogs) 
was transferred to the Department of Agriculture, Fisheries and Forestry (DAFF). 
 
However, pursuant to section 80 of the Financial Accountability Act 2009, for financial statement purposes the 
transfer was deemed to have occurred from the first day of the month following the gazettal date.  Therefore, 
transactions related to the above functions that occurred prior to 1 May 2012 were reflected in the department’s 
financial statements (refer to note 1(ad)). 
 
This approach was applied to both the primary statements and note disclosures, including the disclosures for key  
management personnel and remuneration. 
 
(c) Administered transactions and balances 
 
The department administers, but does not control, certain resources on behalf of the Queensland Government. In 
doing so, it has responsibility and is accountable for administering related transactions and items, but does not 
have the discretion to deploy the resources for the achievement of the department's objectives. 
 
Administered transactions and balances are disclosed in note 29.  
 
On 4 February 2013, as a result of Administrative Arrangements Amendment Order (No.1) 2013 the Queensland 
Reconstruction Authority was transferred from the Minister for State Development, Infrastructure and Planning.  
The department receives administered funding which is paid to the authority as grant funding.  For departmental 
administered financial statement purposes, the transfer is deemed to have occurred from the first day of the month 
following the gazettal date, that is, from 1 March 2013. 
 
The authority is a statutory body under the Queensland Reconstruction Authority Act 2011 and prepares separate 
financial statements. 
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Department of Local Government, Community Recovery and Resilience 
NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
for the year ended 30 June 2013 
 
(d) Departmental services revenue/administered revenue 
 
Appropriations provided under the Appropriation Act 2012 are recognised as revenue in the year the department 
obtains control over them. The appropriation revenue payable reflected in the financial statements as at 
30 June 2013 has been approved by Queensland Treasury and Trade and recognised within revenue. 
 
Amounts appropriated to the department for transfer to other entities in accordance with legislative or other 
requirements are reported as 'administered' item appropriations, refer to note 29. 
 
(e) User charges and fees 
 
User charges and fees controlled by the department are recognised as revenues when the revenue has been 
earned and can be measured reliably with a sufficient degree of certainty. When the services have been performed 
and/or ownership of the goods has passed to the clients the revenue is recognised by either raising invoices or 
accruals. User charges are controlled by the department where they can be deployed for the achievement of 
departmental objectives. 
 
Fees and fines collected, but not controlled, by the department are reported as administered revenue, refer to note 
29. 
 
(f) Grants and other contributions 
 
Grants, contributions, donations and gifts that are non-reciprocal in nature are recognised as revenue in the year in 
which the department obtains control over them (control is generally obtained at the time of receipt).  Where grants 
are received that are reciprocal in nature, revenue is progressively recognised as it is earned, according to the 
terms of the funding arrangements. 
 
Contributed assets are recognised at their fair value. The accounting treatment for contributions of services is 
explained in note 1(v). 
 
(g) Special payments 
 
Special payments include ex-gratia expenditure and other expenditure that the department is not contractually or 
legally obligated to make to other parties.  In compliance with the Financial and Performance Management 
Standard 2009, the department maintains a register setting out details of all special payments greater than $5,000.   
 
(h) Cash and cash equivalents 
 
For the purposes of the Statement of financial position and the Statement of cash flows, cash assets include all 
cash and cheques receipted but not banked at 30 June as well as deposits at call with financial institutions.  
 
(i) Receivables 
 
Trade debtors are recognised at the amounts due at the time of sale or service delivery, i.e. the agreed 
purchase/contract price. Settlement of these amounts is required within 30 days from the invoice date. 
 
The collectability of receivables is assessed periodically with an allowance being made for impairment. All known 
bad debts were written-off as at 30 June. Increases in the allowance for impairment are based on loss events as 
disclosed in note 27(c). 
 
Loans and advances consist of five interest free loans to local councils and were recognised at the face value up to 
30 June 2011 when formal agreements were established and signed.  As per AASB 139 Financial Instruments 
Recognitions and measurement, from 2011 each loan was then measured at fair value and amortised over the life 
of the loan using the effective interest method.  The market value is determined by discounting future cash flows by 
the QTC yield curve at that date of loan inception. Terms are as recorded in individual loan agreements which 
range from five to fifteen years. 
 
Other debtors generally arise from transactions outside the usual operating activities of the department and are 
recognised at their assessed values. No interest is charged and no security is obtained. 
 
(j) Acquisitions of assets 
 
Cost is used for the initial recording of all non-current physical and intangible asset acquisitions. Cost is determined 
as the value given as consideration plus costs incidental to the acquisition, including all other costs incurred in 
getting the assets ready for use, including architects' fees and engineering design fees. However, any training costs 
are expensed as incurred. 
 
Where assets are received free of charge from a Queensland Government entity (whether as a result of a  
machinery-of-Government change or other involuntary transfer), the assets are recognised at the gross carrying 
amount in the books of the transferor immediately prior to the transfer together with any accumulated depreciation. 
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Department of Local Government, Community Recovery and Resilience 
NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
for the year ended 30 June 2013 
 
(j) Acquisitions of assets (continued) 
 
Assets acquired at no cost or for nominal consideration, other than from an involuntary transfer from a Queensland 
Government entity, are recognised at their fair value at the date of acquisition in accordance with  
AASB 116 Property, Plant and Equipment. 
 
 (k) Property, plant and equipment 
 
Items of property, plant and equipment with a cost or other value equal to or in excess of the following thresholds 
are recognised for financial reporting purposes in the year of acquisition: 
 
Infrastructure $10,000 
Land $1 
Plant and equipment $ 5,000 
 
Items with a lesser value are expensed in the year of acquisition. 
 
(l) Revaluations of non-current physical assets 
 
Infrastructure and Heritage and Cultural assets are measured at fair value in accordance with AASB 116 Property, 
Plant and Equipment and Queensland Treasury and Trade's Non-Current Asset Policies for the Queensland Public 
Sector. In respect of these asset classes, the cost of items acquired during the financial year has been judged by 
management of the department to materially represent their fair value at the end of the reporting period. 
 
Plant and equipment is measured at cost in accordance with Queensland Treasury and Trade's Non-Current Asset 
Policies for the Queensland Public Sector.  Capital works in progress are measured at cost.  All direct and, where 
reliably attributable, indirect costs relating to constructed infrastructure are recorded as work in progress.  
 
Non-current physical assets measured at fair value are revalued on an annual basis by appraisals undertaken by 
an independent professional valuer or internal expert, or by the use of appropriate and relevant indices. 
Revaluations based on independent professional valuer or internal expert appraisals are undertaken at least once 
every five years. However, if a class of asset experiences significant and volatile changes in fair value (i.e. where 
indicators suggest that the value of the class of asset may have changed by 20 per cent or more from one reporting 
period to the next), it is subject to revaluation in the reporting period, where practicable, regardless of the timing of 
previous such method of revaluation. 
 
Where indices are used in the revaluation process the department ensures that the application of such indices 
would result in a valid estimation of the asset's fair value at reporting date. State Valuation Service (SVS) supplied 
the indices.  Indices used are also tested for reasonableness by applying the indices to a sample of assets and 
comparing results to similar assets that have been valued by an independent professional valuer or internal expert, 
and analysing the trend of changes in values over time.  At year end, management assess the relevance and 
suitability of indices used. 
 
Any revaluation increment arising on the revaluation of an asset is credited to the asset revaluation surplus of the 
appropriate class, except to the extent it reverses a revaluation decrement for the class previously recognised as 
an expense. A decrease in the carrying amount on revaluation is charged as an expense, to the extent it exceeds 
the balance, if any, in the revaluation surplus relating to that class. 
 
On revaluation, accumulated depreciation is restated proportionately with the change in the carrying amount of the 
asset and any change in the estimate of remaining useful life. 
 
Materiality concepts under AASB 1031 Materiality are considered in determining whether the difference between 
the carrying amount and the fair value of an asset is material. 
 
Separately identified components of assets are measured on the same basis as the assets to which they relate. 
 
(m) Intangible assets 
 
Intangible assets with a cost or other value greater than $100,000 are recognised in the financial statements, items 
with a lesser value being expensed. Each intangible asset is amortised over its estimated useful life to the 
department, less any anticipated residual value. The residual value is zero for all of the department's intangible 
assets. 
 
It has been determined that there is not an active market for any of the department's intangible assets. As such, the 
assets are recognised and carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses. 
 
No intangible assets have been classified as held for sale or form part of a disposal group held for sale. 
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Department of Local Government, Community Recovery and Resilience 
NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
for the year ended 30 June 2013 
 
(m) Intangible assets (continued) 
 
Internally generated software 
Expenditure on research activities relating to internally generated intangible assets is recognised as an expense in 
the period in which it is incurred. Costs associated with the development of computer software have been 
capitalised and are amortised on a straight-line basis over the period of expected benefit to the department. 
 
Land is not depreciated or amortised as it has an unlimited useful life. 
 
All intangible assets of the department have finite useful lives and are amortised on a straight-line basis. 
 
 
 (n) Depreciation and amortisation of property, plant, equipment and intangible assets 
 
Property, plant and equipment is depreciated on a straight-line basis so as to allocate the net cost or revalued 
amount of each asset, less its estimated residual value, progressively over its estimated useful life to the 
department. 
 
Assets under construction (work in progress) are not depreciated until they reach service delivery capacity. Service 
delivery capacity relates to when construction is complete and the asset is first put to use or is installed ready for 
use in accordance with its intended application. These assets are then reclassified to the relevant classes with 
property, plant and equipment. 
 
Where assets have separately identifiable components that are subject to regular replacement, these components 
are assigned useful lives distinct from the asset to which they relate and are depreciated accordingly. 
 
Any expenditure that increases the originally assessed capacity or service potential of an asset is capitalised and 
the new depreciable amount is depreciated over the remaining useful life of the asset to the department. 
 
The depreciable amount of leasehold improvements is allocated progressively over the estimated useful lives of the 
improvements or the unexpired period of the lease, whichever is the shorter. The unexpired period of a lease 
includes any option period where exercise of the option is probable. 
 
For each class of depreciable and amortisable asset the following rates are used: 
 
 2013 2012 
Class Rates % Rates % 
Infrastructure 1-10% 1-10% 
Plant and equipment:   
 Computer equipment 20-25% 9-33% 
 Leasehold improvements - 3-10% 
 Office equipment 20% 14-20% 
Intangible assets: 
 Software internally generated - 20% 
 
(o) Impairment of non-current assets 
 
All non-current physical assets and intangible assets are assessed for indicators of impairment on an annual basis. 
If an indicator of possible impairment exists, the department determines the asset's recoverable amount. Any 
amount by which the asset's carrying amount exceeds the recoverable amount is recorded as an impairment loss. 
 
The asset's recoverable amount is determined as the higher of the asset's fair value less costs to sell and 
depreciated replacement cost. 
 
An impairment loss is expensed immediately in the Statement of comprehensive income, unless the asset is carried 
at a revalued amount. When the asset is measured at a revalued amount, the impairment loss is offset against the 
asset revaluation surplus of the relevant class to the extent available. 
 
Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset is increased to the revised 
estimate of its recoverable amount, to the extent that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying 
amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. A 
reversal of an impairment loss is recognised as income, unless the asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which 
case the reversal of the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation increase to the extent that it reverses  
write-downs of previously impaired revaluation increments. Refer also note 1(l). 
 
 (p) Leases 
 
A distinction is made in the financial statements between finance leases that effectively transfer from the lessor to 
the lessee substantially all risks and benefits incidental to ownership, and operating leases, under which the lessor 
retains substantially all risks and benefits. 
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(p) Leases (continued) 
 
The department has not entered into any finance leases as a lessee. 
 
Operating lease payments are representative of the pattern of benefits derived from the leased assets and are 
expensed in the period in which they are incurred. 
 
(q) Payables 
 
Trade creditors are recognised upon receipt of the goods and services ordered and are measured at the agreed 
purchase/contract price, gross of applicable trade and other discounts. Amounts owing are unsecured and are 
generally settled on 30 day terms. 
 
(r) Financial instruments 
 
Recognition 
Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the Statement of financial position when the department 
becomes party to the contractual provisions of the financial instrument. 
 
Classification 
Financial instruments are classified and measured as follows: 

- Cash and cash equivalents — held at fair value through Statement of comprehensive income 
- Receivables — held at amortised cost 
- Payables — held at amortised cost 

 
The department does not enter into transactions for speculative purposes, nor for hedging. Apart from cash and 
cash equivalents, the department holds no financial assets classified at fair value through the Statement of 
comprehensive income. 
 
All other disclosures relating to the measurement basis and financial risk management of financial instruments held 
by the department are included in note 27. 
 
(s) Employee benefits 
 
Employer superannuation contributions, annual leave levies and long service leave levies are regarded as 
employee benefits.  
 
Payroll tax and workers' compensation insurance are a consequence of employing employees, but are not counted 
in an employee's total remuneration package. They are not employee benefits and are recognised separately as 
employee related expenses. 
 
Wages, salaries and sick leave 
Wages and salaries due but unpaid at reporting date are recognised in the Statement of financial position at current 
salary rates.  
 
For unpaid entitlements expected to be paid within 12 months, the liabilities are recognised at their undiscounted 
values. For those entitlements not expected to be paid within 12 months, the liabilities are classified as non-current 
liabilities and recognised at their present value, calculated using yields on fixed rate Commonwealth Government 
bonds of similar maturity, after projecting the remuneration rates expected to apply at the time of likely settlement. 
 
Prior history indicates that on average, sick leave taken in the reporting period is less than the entitlement accrued. 
This is expected to continue in future periods. Accordingly, it is unlikely that existing accumulated entitlements will 
be used by employees and no liability for unused sick leave entitlements is recognised. 
 
As sick leave is non-vesting, an expense is recognised for this leave as it is taken. 
 
Annual leave 
The Queensland Government's Annual Leave Central Scheme (ALCS) became operational on 30 June 2008 for 
departments, commercialised business units and shared service providers. Under the scheme, a levy is made on 
the department to cover the cost of employees' annual leave (including leave loading and on-costs). The levies are 
expensed in the period in which they are payable. Amounts paid to employees for annual leave are claimed from 
the scheme quarterly in arrears.  
 
No provision for annual leave has been recognised in the department’s financial statements as the liability is held 
on a whole-of-Government basis and reported in those financial statements prepared pursuant to AASB 1049 
Whole of Government and General Government Sector Financial Reporting. 
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(s) Employee benefits (continued) 
 
Long service leave 
Under the Queensland Government’s Long Service Leave Scheme (LSLS), a levy is made on the department to 
cover the cost of employees long service leave. Levies are expensed in the period in which they are paid or 
payable. Amounts paid to employees for long service leave are claimed from the scheme quarterly in arrears. 
 
No provision for long service leave is recognised in the department’s financial statements as the liability is held on a 
whole-of-Government basis and reported in the financial statements prepared pursuant to AASB 1049 Whole of 
Government and General Government Sector Financial Reporting. 
 
Superannuation 
Employer superannuation contributions are paid to QSuper, the superannuation scheme for Queensland 
Government employees, at rates determined by the Treasurer on advice of the State Actuary. Contributions are 
expensed in the period in which they are paid or payable. The department's obligation is limited to its contribution to 
QSuper. 
 
The QSuper scheme has defined benefit and defined contribution categories. The liability for defined benefits is 
held on a whole-of-Government basis and reported in those financial statements prepared pursuant to AASB 1049 
Whole of Government and General Government Sector Financial Reporting. 
 
Key management personnel and remuneration 
Key management personnel and remuneration disclosures are made in accordance with section 5 of the Financial 
Reporting Requirements for Queensland Government Agencies issued by Queensland Treasury and Trade. Refer 
to note 7 for the disclosures on key management personnel and remuneration. 
 
(t) Allocation of revenues and expenses from ordinary activities to corporate services 
 
The department allocates revenues and expenses attributable to corporate services to major departmental services 
based on full-time equivalent employees.  These are disclosed in the Statement of comprehensive income by major 
departmental services. 
 
(u) Insurance 
 
The department's non-current physical assets and other risks are insured through the Queensland Government 
Insurance Fund, premiums being paid on a risk assessment basis. In addition, the department pays premiums to 
WorkCover Queensland in respect of its obligations for employee compensation. 
 
(v) Services received free of charge or for nominal value 
 
Contributions of services are recognised only if the services would have been purchased if they had not been 
donated and their fair value can be measured reliably. Where this is the case, an equal amount is recognised as 
revenue and expense. 
 
(w) Contributed equity 
 
Non-reciprocal transfers of assets and liabilities between wholly-owned Queensland State Public Sector entities as 
a result of machinery-of-Government changes are adjusted to Contributed equity in accordance with  
Interpretation 1038 Contributions by Owners Made to Wholly-Owned Public Sector Entities. Appropriations for 
equity adjustments are similarly designated. 
 
(x) Taxation 
 
The department is a State body as defined under the Income Tax Assessment Act 1936 and is exempt from 
Commonwealth taxation with the exception of Fringe Benefits Tax (FBT) and Goods and Services Tax (GST). FBT 
and GST are the only taxes accounted for by the department. GST credits receivable from, and GST payable to the 
Australian Taxation Office (ATO), are recognised (refer to note 14). 
 
Revenue, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of GST, except where the amount of GST 
incurred is not recoverable from the ATO. In these circumstances, the GST is recognised as part of the cost of 
acquisition of the asset or as part of the expense. 
 
Receivables and payables are stated with the amount of GST included. 
 
Cash flows are included in the Statement of cash flows on a gross basis. The GST components of cash flows 
arising from investing and financing activities which are recoverable from, or payable to, the ATO are classified as 
operating cash flows. 
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(y) Issuance of financial statements 
 
The financial statements are authorised for issue by the Director-General and Chief Finance Officer at the date of 
signing the Management Certificate. 
 
(z) Accounting estimates and judgements 
 
The preparation of financial statements necessarily requires the determination and use of certain critical accounting 
estimates, assumptions and management judgements that have the potential to cause a material adjustment to the 
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year. Such estimates, judgements and underlying 
assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in 
which the estimate is revised and in future periods as relevant.  
 
Estimates and assumptions that have a potential significant effect are outlined in the valuation of property, plant 
and equipment note (refer note 17). 
 
(aa) Rounding and comparatives 
 
Amounts included in the financial statements are in Australian dollars and have been rounded to the nearest $1,000 
or where the amount is $500 or less, to zero, unless disclosure of the full amount is specifically required. 
 
Comparative information has been restated where necessary to be consistent with disclosures in the current 
reporting period. 
 
When comparing the current year and comparative year the movements are largely as a result of the  
machinery-of-Government change effective 1 May 2012 which transferred the Planning function to the Department 
of State Development, Infrastructure and Planning, refer note 1(ad). 
 
(ab) New and revised accounting standards 
 
The department did not voluntarily change any of its accounting policies during 2012–13. Australian Accounting 
Standards or Interpretations issued or amended and effective for the first time in 2012–13 have had minimal impact 
on the department's financial statements, as explained below. 
 
AASB 2011-9 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards – Presentation of Items of Other Comprehensive 
Income [AASB 1, 5, 7, 101, 112, 120, 121, 132, 133, 134, 1039 & 1049] became effective from reporting periods 
beginning on or after 1 July 2012.   The only impact for the department is that, in the Statement of comprehensive 
income, items within the ‘Other comprehensive income’ section are now presented in different sub-sections, 
according to whether or not they are subsequently classifiable to the operating result.  Whether subsequent 
reclassification is possible depends on the requirements or criteria in the accounting standard/interpretation that 
relates to the item concerned. 
 
The department is not permitted to early adopt a new or amended accounting standard ahead of the specified 
commencement date unless approval is obtained from Queensland Treasury and Trade. Consequently, the 
department has not applied any Australian Accounting Standards or Interpretations that have been issued but are 
not yet effective. The department will apply these standards and interpretations in accordance with their respective 
commencement dates. 
 
At the date of authorisation of the financial report, the only significant impacts of new or amended Australian 
Accounting Standards with future commencement dates are set out below. 
 
AASB 13 Fair Value Measurement applies from reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013. AASB 13 
sets out a new definition of “fair value”, as well as new principles to be applied when determining the fair value of 
assets and liabilities. The new requirements will apply to all of the department's assets and liabilities (excluding 
leases) that are measured and/or disclosed at fair value or another measurement based on fair value. The potential 
impacts of AASB 13 relate to the fair value measurement methodologies used, and financial statement disclosures 
made in respect of, such assets and liabilities. 
 
The department has commenced reviewing its fair value methodologies (including instructions to valuers, data used 
and assumptions made) for all items of property, plant and equipment measured at fair value to determine whether 
those methodologies comply with AASB 13. To the extent that the methodologies don't comply, changes will be 
necessary. While the department is yet to complete this review, no significant changes are anticipated, based on 
the fair value methodologies presently used. Therefore, at this stage, no consequential material impacts are 
expected for the department's property, plant and equipment from 2013–14. 
 
AASB 13 will require an increased amount of information to be disclosed in relation to fair value measurements for 
both assets and liabilities. To the extent that any fair value measurement for an asset or liability uses data that is 
not "observable" outside the department, the amount of information to be disclosed will be greater again. 
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(ab) New and revised accounting standards (continued) 
 
A revised version of AASB 119 Employee Benefits applies from reporting periods beginning on or after  
1 January 2013.  The revised AASB 119 is generally to be applied retrospectively.  Given the department’s 
circumstances, the only implications for the department are that the revised standard clarifies the concept of 
‘termination benefits’, and the recognition criteria for liabilities for termination benefits will be different.  If termination 
benefits meet the timeframe criterion for ‘short-term employee benefits’, they will be measured according to the 
AASB 119 requirements for ‘short-term employee benefits’.  Otherwise, termination benefits will need to be 
measured according to the AASB 119 requirements for ‘other long-term employee benefits’.  Under the revised 
standard, the recognition and measurement of employer obligations for ‘other long-term employee benefits’ will 
need to be accounted for according to most of the requirements for defined benefit plans. 
 
The revised AASB 119 includes changed criteria for accounting for employee benefits as ‘short-term employee 
benefits’.   However as the department is a member of the Queensland Government central schemes for annual 
leave and long service leave, this change in criteria has no impact on the department’s financial statements as the 
employer liability is held by the central scheme.  The revised AASB 119 also includes changed requirements for the 
measurement of employer liabilities/assets arising from defined benefit plans, and the measurement and 
presentation of changes in such liabilities/assets.  The department makes employer superannuation contributions 
only to the QSuper defined benefit plan, and the corresponding QSuper employer benefit obligation is held by the 
State.  Therefore, those changes to AASB 119 will have no impact on the department. 
 
AASB 1053 Application of Tiers of Australian Accounting Standards applies as from reporting periods beginning on 
or after 1 July 2013.  AASB 1053 establishes a differential reporting framework for those entities that prepare 
general purpose financial statements, consisting of two Tiers of reporting requirements – Australian Accounting 
Standards (commonly referred to as ‘Tier 1’), and the Australian Accounting Standards – Reduced Disclosure 
Requirements (commonly referred to as ‘Tier 2’).  Tier 1 requirements comprise the full range of AASB recognition, 
measurement, presentation and disclosure requirements that are currently applicable to reporting entities in 
Australia.  The only difference between Tier 1 and Tier 2 requirements is that Tier 2 requires fewer disclosures than 
Tier 1. 
 
Details of which disclosures in standards and interpretations are not required under Tier 2 reporting are set out in 
amending standards AASB 2010-2, AASB 2011-2, AASB 2011-6, AASB 2011-11, AASB 2012-1, AASB 2012-7 and 
AASB 2012-11 (which also applies to reporting periods beginning on or after 1 July 2013).  However, Queensland 
Treasury and Trade’s Financial Reporting Requirements effectively do not allow application of AASB 2011-6 in 
respect of controlled entities, associates or interests in jointly controlled entities. 
 
Pursuant to AASB 1053, public sector entities like the department may adopt Tier 2 requirements for their general 
purpose financial statements.  However, AASB 1053 acknowledges the power of a regulator to require application 
of the Tier 1 requirements.  In the case of the department, Queensland Treasury and Trade is a regulator.  
Queensland Treasury and Trade has advised that its policy decision is to require adoption of Tier 1 reporting by all 
Queensland Government departments (including the Department of Local Government, Community Recovery and 
Resilience) and statutory bodies that are consolidated into the whole-of-Government financial statements.  
Therefore, the release of AASB 1053 and associated amending standards will have no impact on the department. 
 
The following new and revised standards apply as from reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2014:  
• AASB 10 Consolidated Financial Statements 
• AASB 11 Joint Arrangements 
• AASB 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities 
• AASB 127 (revised) Separate Financial Statements 
• AASB 128 (revised) Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures 
• AASB 2011 -7 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards arising from the Consolidation and Joint 
Arrangements Standards [AASB 1, 2, 3, 5, 7, 9, 2009-11, 101, 107, 112, 118, 121, 124, 132, 133, 136, 138, 139, 
1023 & 1038 and Interpretations 5, 9, 16 & 17]. 
 
The AASB is planning to amend AASB 10.  Such amendments are expected to clarify how the IASB’s principles 
about control of entities should be applied by not-for-profit entities in an Australian context.  Hence the department 
is not yet in a position to reliably determine the future implications of these new and revised standards for the 
department’s financial statements. 
 
AASB 10 redefines and clarifies the concept of control of another entity, and is the basis for determining which 
entities should be consolidated into an entity’s financial statements.  Therefore, once the AASB finalises its not-for-
profit amendments to AASB 10, the department will need to reassess the nature of its relationships with other 
entities, including entities that are not currently consolidated. 
 
AASB 11 deals with the concept of joint control and sets out new principles for determining the type of joint 
arrangement that exists, which in turn dictates the accounting treatment.  The new categories of joint arrangements 
under AASB 11 are more aligned to the actual rights and obligations of the parties to the arrangement.  Subject to 
any not-for-profit amendments that are made to AASB 11, the department will need to assess the nature of any 
arrangements with other entities to determine whether a joint arrangement exists in terms of AASB 11.  If a joint 
arrangement does exist, the department will need to follow the relevant accounting treatment specified in either 
AASB 11 or the revised AASB 128, depending on the nature of the joint arrangement. 
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(ab) New and revised accounting standards (continued) 
 
AASB 1055 Budgetary Reporting applies from reporting periods beginning on or after 1 July 2014.  From that date, 
based on what is currently published in the Queensland Government’s Budgetary Service Delivery Statements, this 
means the department will need to include in the financial statements the original budgeted statements for the 
Statement of comprehensive income, Statement of financial position, Statement of changes in equity, and 
Statement of cash flows.  These budgeted statements will need to be presented consistently with the corresponding 
(actuals) financial statements, and will be accompanied by explanations of major variances between the actual 
amounts and the corresponding budgeted financial statement. 
 
AASB 9 Financial Instruments (December 2010) and AASB 2010-7 Amendments to Australian Accounting 
Standards arising from AASB 9 (December 2010) [AASB 1, 3, 4, 5, 7, 101, 102, 108, 112, 118, 120, 121, 127, 128, 
131, 132, 136, 137, 139, 1023 & 1038 and Interpretations 2, 5, 10, 12, 19 & 127] become effective from reporting 
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2015. The main impacts of these standards on the department are that they 
will change the requirements for the classification, measurement and disclosures associated with financial assets.  
Under the new requirements, financial assets will be more simply classified according to whether they are 
measured at amortised cost or fair value.  
 
Pursuant to AASB 9, financial assets can only be measured at amortised cost if two conditions are met. One of 
these conditions is that the asset must be held within a business model with the objective to hold assets in order to 
collect contractual cash flows. The other condition is that the contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified 
dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. 
 
The department has commenced reviewing the measurement of its financial assets against the new AASB 9 
classification and measurement requirements. However, as the classification of financial assets at the date of initial 
application of AASB 9 will depend on the facts and circumstances existing at that date, the department's 
conclusions will not be confirmed until closer to that time. The department has a number of interest-free loans that 
are currently recorded at amortised.  These need further assessment as to whether they meet the conditions for 
being measured at amortised cost.  At this stage, and assuming no change in the other types of transactions the 
department enters into, it is not expected that any of the department's other financial assets will meet the criteria in 
AASB 9 to be measured at amortised cost.  
 
Therefore, as from the 2015–16 financial statements, all of the department's financial assets are expected to be 
required to be measured at fair value, and classified accordingly (instead of the measurement classifications 
presently used in notes 1(r) and 27). The same classification will be used for net gains/losses recognised in the 
Statement of comprehensive income in respect of those financial assets. In the case of the department's current 
receivables, as they are short-term in nature, the carrying amount is expected to be a reasonable approximation of 
fair value. 
 
The department will not need to restate comparative figures for financial instruments on adopting AASB 9 as from 
2015-16.  However, changed disclosure requirements will apply from that time.  A number of one-off disclosures will 
be required in the 2015-16 financial statements to explain the impact of adopting AASB 9.  Assuming no change in 
the types of financial instruments that the department enters into the department does not anticipate any significant 
disclosure impacts. 
 
All other Australian Accounting Standards and Interpretations with future commencement dates are either not 
applicable to the department’s activities, or have no material impact on the department. 
 
 (ac) Major departmental services 
 
Local Government 
 
The Local Government service area of the department will ensure local governments are able to make effective 
decisions that bring increased economic prosperity and social cohesion to their local government areas.  The 
department wants all local governments to have the necessary autonomy, authority, capacity and resilience to 
deliver the best outcomes for their community. 
 
Community Recovery and Resilience 
 
The Community Recovery and Resilience service area of the department is a new major service area established 
this year.  It facilitates Government agencies working together to build community resilience based on an all 
hazards approach in disaster ravaged areas.  Resilience focus areas will include examination of the feasibility of 
levees and dams, natural safeguards and also community infrastructure such as community based, and led, 
support plans. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

-65-



Department of Local Government, Community Recovery and Resilience 
NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
for the year ended 30 June 2013 
 
(ad) Machinery-of-Government changes 
 
On 4 February 2013, as a result of the Administrative Arrangements Amendment Order (No.1) 2013 the 
Department of Local Government was renamed the Department of Local Government, Community Recovery and 
Resilience and the Queensland Reconstruction Authority was transferred from the Minister for State Development, 
Infrastructure and Planning to the Minister for Local Government, Community Recovery and Resilience.  The 
department receives administered funding which is paid to the authority as grant funding.  For departmental 
administered financial statement purposes, the transfer is deemed to have occurred from the first day of the month 
following the gazettal date, that is, from 1 March 2013. 
 
The authority is a statutory body under the Queensland Reconstruction Authority Act 2011 and prepares separate 
financial statements. 
 
2011-12 comparative year 
 
As a result of Administrative Arrangements Order (No. 4) 2012, dated 3 April 2012 and effective 1 May 2012, the 
Department of Local Government and Planning (DLGP) was renamed the Department of Local Government (DLG). 
The Planning (excluding Building Codes Queensland) and Strategy and Governance functions were transferred to 
the Department of State Development, Infrastructure and Planning (DSDIP). Building Codes Queensland was 
transferred to the Department of Housing and Public Works (DHPW) and Animal Management (Cats and Dogs) 
was transferred to the Department of Agriculture, Fisheries and Forestry (DAFF). 
 
As agreed between the Directors-General for the DLG, DSDIP, DHPW and DAFF as a result of this machinery-of-
Government (MoG) change the following assets and liabilities were transferred out of the Department of Local 
Government effective 1 May 2012. 
 

 DAFF 
$’000 

DHPW 
$’000 

DSDIP 
$’000 

Total 
$’000 

Assets     
Cash and cash equivalents - 1,218 - 1,218 
Inventories - - 21,595 21,595 
Other financial assets - 86 168 254 
Intangible assets - 701 1,824 2,525 
Property, plant and equipment - 35 7,551 7,586 

Total assets - 2,040 31,138 33,178 
Liabilities     
      Bank overdraft - - 1,888 1,888 
 Payables - - 1,059 1,059 

Other liabilities - 1,284 - 1,284 
Total liabilities - 1,284 2,947 4,231 
Net assets - 756 28,191 28,947 

 
Decreases in assets and liabilities have been accounted for in Contributed equity as disclosed in the Statement of 
changes in equity. 
 
Expenses and revenues reliably attributed to Planning and Strategy and Governance, reported in the Statement of 
comprehensive income by major departmental service relate to the period 1 July 2011 to 30 April 2012. 
 
Budgeted departmental service revenue (controlled) of $22,511,000 was reallocated to DSDIP, $1,830,000 to 
DHPW and $9,000 to DAFF. 
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Budgeted departmental services appropriation
Transfers to Department of State Development, Infrastructure and Planning
Transfers to Department of Housing and Public Works
Transfers to Department of Agriculture, Fisheries and Forestry
Treasurer's transfers
Lapsed departmental services appropriation

Total departmental services receipts
Less: Opening balance of departmental services revenue receivable
Plus: Closing balance of departmental services revenue receivable
Less: Closing balance of departmental services revenue payable

Departmental services revenue recognised in Statement of comprehensive income

Budgeted equity adjustment appropriation
Treasurer's transfers
Lapsed equity adjustment

Equity adjustment receipts (payments)
Less:  Opening balance of equity adjustment receivable
Plus:  Closing balance of equity adjustment receivable

Equity adjustment recognised in Contributed equity

3.  User charges
Event revenue
Professional services
Other
Total

4.  Grants and other contributions
Grants - Commonwealth
Grants - Queensland Government departments

Grants - other
Total

5.  Other revenues
Grant refunds from prior year
Interest 
Statutory licences
Goods and services received below fair value
Sundry
Total 

211

-

-62
151

16

12

3,875

-

(153,911)

Reconciliation of payments from consolidated fund to equity adjustment recognised in Contributed 
equity

2013

-

2,090-

2,896
288 775

3

4,385

817

2

(626)

126,409

-

833

Included in revenue from grants for 2013 is a $3.875 million non reciprocal grant received from the Department of Communities for the Flexible 
Funding Program.  These funds are forwarded to Local Governments for Natural Disaster Relief and Recovery Arrangements, Community 
Development and Recovery purposes.  This includes measures to support a community development approach to reconstruction as outlined in the 
Queensland Government State Plan for Reconstruction. The grant has been recognised in its entirety upon receipt as the department has met the 
grant agreement's conditions entitling it to receipt of the funding.

30,649

2.  Reconciliation of payments from consolidated fund to Departmental services revenue

(16,767)

27,301

4,165

690

10,534

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

-

recognised in Statement of comprehensive income

-

$'000 

663,312

(1,505)
(9)

$'000 

-

94

1,065

(97,117)

-

435,945

-

-

(34,356)

30,649

2,880

(94) (1,495)

2012

434,544

-

(37,586)

7,288

702

714

847
153 4,836

10,534

-

- 27,769

-

223,526

125,689
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6.  Employee expenses

Employee benefits
Wages and salaries
Employer superannuation contributions *
Annual leave levy *
Long service leave levy *
Termination benefits
Other employee benefits

Employee related expenses
Fringe benefits tax * **
Payroll tax *
Workers compensation premium *
Other employee related expenses
Total

* Refer to note 1(s)
** Fringe benefits tax is included in Other employee related expenses for the 2012-13 year.

Number of employees:

7. Key management personnel and remuneration

(a) Key management personnel

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

309

2013

5

120

5,570

Current Incumbents

-

2013

54

Contract classification and 
appointment authority

1,301 4,913
182

59,968

Date appointed to position 
(Date resigned from 

position)

02/02/2013 - 30/06/2013
03/09/2012 - 01/02/2013
07/07/2012 - 19/08/2012
01/07/2012 - 06/07/2012

1,130

12,538

2012

$'000 

SES4/Public Service Act 2008 
(section 122)

8,455

101

2,760

18

04/02/2013 - 30/06/2013
20/08/2012 - 01/02/2013
01/07/2012 - 17/08/2012

39,616

954
867

656

$'000 

The Deputy Director-General leads the Strategy and 
Governance arm to support our workforce in delivering on 
our objectives and to develop and implement strategies to 
enhance community resilience to natural disasters.

08/04/2013 - 30/06/2013

5,049

76

504

87

2012

Deputy Director-
General Local 
Government

Deputy Director-
General Strategy 
Governance and 
Resilience

Director-General The Director-General is responsible for the efficient, 
effective and economic administration of the agency to 
facilitate effective local government administration and to 
enhance community resilience to natural disasters. 

Responsibilities

The Deputy Director-General has responsibility for grants 
program implementation and review including capacity 
building, financial sustainability and the regional office 
network.                   

The following details for key management personnel include those positions that had authority and responsibility for planning, directing and 
controlling the activities of the department during 2012-13. Further information on these positions can be found in the body of the annual report under 
the section relating to management.

Position

The number of employees including both full-time and part-time employees measured on a full-time equivalent basis at the end of the financial year 
(reflecting Minimum Obligatory Human Resource Information (MOHRI)) is:

CEOPAY/Public Service Act 2008 
(section 122)

SES3/Public Service Act 2008
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7. Key management personnel and remuneration (continued)

(b) Remuneration

Remuneration packages for key management personnel comprise the following components:
- Short-term employee benefits which include:

-

-
- Long-term employee benefits include amounts expensed in respect of long service leave.
- Post-employment benefits include amounts expensed in respect of employer superannuation obligations.
-

- Performance bonuses are not paid under the contracts in place.

1 July 2012 - 30 June 2013

Base

$'000

68

102

145

-

118

79

55

567 

*Officers acting in postions have occupied two roles within the financial year.

1 July 2011 - 30 June 2012

Total

64 

375 

51 

1 

6 

173 19 3 

148 

208 

38 

0 

56

- 

1

1

1 

- 

0

Termination 
benefits

Long-term 
employee 

benefits
Non-monetary 

benefits

43

Short-term employee benefits

67 

3 

83 

$'000

Post employment 
benefits

16Director-General
$'000

6 

$'000$'000

- 

2 11 

18 

8 

103

21 1,032 121 - 1,241 

130 

Short-term employee 
benefits

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

- 

*Acting Director-General

306

14

- 

1 

1 

171

1

25

- 

Base

5

127

10 9

146

72

- 

$'000

3 

Non-monetary 
benefits

Dates

20/08/2012 - 01/02/2013 - 2 

7 

4 14 

$'000$'000

Total 

1 

6 

- 

89 

$'000
1 

6 

Base - consisting of base salary, allowances and leave entitlements expensed for the entire year or for that part of the year during which the 
employee occupied the specified position.
Non-monetary benefits - consisting of provision of vehicle and car parking benefits together with fringe benefits tax applicable to the benefit.

Redundancy payments are not provided for within individual contracts of employment. Contracts of employment provide for notice periods or 
payment in lieu of notice on termination, regardless of the reason for termination, and termination payments may be included (separation payment 
for early termination or non-renewal).

Total fixed remuneration is calculated on a ‘total cost’ basis and includes the base and non-monetary benefits, long-term employee benefits and post-
employment benefits.

Position

Director-General

Acting Deputy Director-
General Local 
Government

Deputy Director-General 
Strategy Governance and 
Resilience

Remuneration is disclosed for the substantive position and also a summary of payments made to those employees relieving in the substantive 
position.  The sum of the substantive and the relieving amounts can differ to remuneration attributable to the role due to leave without pay and 
unplanned absences.

Position

61 

881 

Termination 
benefits

$'000
- 

240 

- 

- 

240 

Post employment 
benefits

Long-term 
employee 

benefits

The remuneration policy for the department’s key management personnel is set by the Queensland Public Service Commission as provided for 
under the Public Service Act 2008 . The remuneration and other terms of employment for the key management personnel are specified in 
employment contracts. The contracts provide for benefits including motor vehicles.

For the 2012-13 year, remuneration of key management personnel increased by 2.2% in accordance with government policy.

Acting Director-General 04/02/2013 - 30/06/2013

Associate Deputy Director-
General Local 
Government

2 - 12 

Total 

7 

5 

57 

1 

1 

- 

10 

- 
$'000

- 115 11 

Acting Director-General

Chief Executive Officer 
GMQ
Acting Chief Executive 
Officer GMQ

- 

03/09/2012 - 01/02/2013

1 

132 

8 

241 

3 

01/07/2012 - 06/07/2012

Government Planner
Acting Government 
Planner

Deputy Director General

Acting Deputy Director 
General
Deputy Director-General

08/04/2013 - 30/06/2013

Total

13 - 167 

- 

*Deputy Director-General 
Local Government

07/07/2012 - 19/08/2012
02/02/2013 - 30/06/2013 - 

$'000
76 01/07/2012 - 17/08/2012
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8.  Supplies and services

Building services
Computer operating costs
Consultants and contractors
Corporate services
Marketing and public relations
Minor plant and equipment
Minor works
Motor vehicles expense
Repairs and maintenance
Supplies and consumables
Telecommunications
Travel
Other
Total

9.  Grants and subsidies

Local authorities
Charities and community groups
Private enterprise and industry
Commonwealth Government recipients
Queensland Government statutory bodies
Queensland Government departments
Contributions
Total 

10.  Depreciation and amortisation

Depreciation and amortisation were incurred in respect of:
Infrastructure
Plant and equipment
Software internally generated
Total

11.  Impairment losses
Software internally generated
Total

12.  Other expenses

Sponsorships
Transfer of non-current physical assets to local councils
External audit fees *
Insurance premiums - QGIF**
Losses from disposal of property, plant and equipment
Gifts
Total

1,063

28,621

-

108,176 357,351

769
1,0251,025

2

1,023

3,053

601

35

-

9,997

3,053

637

86
235

3,818

51
- 561
- 1,700

239

980

18,697

454

201

-

951

47
177

347,627
7,200 5,388

559

497 684

3,847

995

1,117 5,200

38

100,471

4,695

9 45
48

-
- 18,272

72-

319

-

$'000 $'000 

63
135 662

10,611

657

2,933
1,204

-
14

89

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

18

2013 2012

** Certain losses of public property are insured by the Queensland Government Insurance Fund (QGIF). No claims were made upon QGIF during 
2012–13.

2,353

* Total audit fees paid to the Queensland Audit Office relating to the 2012–13 financial year are estimated to be $112,000 (2012 $260,500). There 
are no non-audit services included in this amount.

74
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13.  Cash and cash equivalents

Cash at bank

Imprest accounts
Total

14.  Receivables

Current
Trade debtors
Less: allowance for impairment loss

GST receivable
GST payable

Annual leave reimbursements
Long service leave reimbursements
Departmental services revenue receivable
Loans and advances
Interest receivable
Other
Total

Non-current
Loans and advances
Total

15.  Other assets

Current
Prepayments
Total

16.  Intangible assets
Software internally generated at cost

Less: Accumulated amortisation

Software under development at cost

Total

Intangible assets reconciliation

Carrying amount at 1 July
Acquisitions

Transfers between classes
Amortisation*
Carrying amount at 30 June

(3,053)

- -

- -

7,663

- -

$'000 $'000 $'000

5,080 354 5,434
- 703

1,128

-

7,979

(1,786) (739) (2,525)
318 (318)

-

Total

-

703

-

- -

Software 
internally 
generated

(3,053) -

2,973

-

Software under 
development

7,663

4

Refer to note 27(c) Financial instruments (Credit risk exposure) for an analysis of movements in the allowance for impairment loss.

-

13,946 2,969

158

5

1,279

20,110

13,947

2012

16,354

-

573

1,103

Disposals through restructure (note 1(ad))

(559)
-

(559)

14

$'000 

1,824

(32)

7,979

1

4

31

- -

2013

(120)

$'000 

1,247

1,824
(4)

16,350

4

-

3,767

1,103

8

2012

Impairment losses recognised in operating result

Total cash includes the Regional Flood Mitigation Program (RFMP) and the Indigenous Environmental Health Infrastructure Program 
(IEHIP) accounts.

217

94

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

* Amortisation of intangible assets is included in the line item 'Depreciation and Amortisation' in the Statement of comprehensive income.

Departmental bank accounts, excluding the  RFMP and IEHIP accounts, are grouped within the whole-of-Government set-off 
arrangement with the Queensland Treasury Corporation and do not earn interest on surplus funds. Interest earned on the aggregate 
set-off arrangement balance accrues to the Consolidated Fund. 

337

22
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17.  Property, plant and equipment

Infrastructure
At fair value
Less: Accumulated depreciation

Plant and equipment
At cost
Less: Accumulated depreciation

Capital work in progress
At cost

Total

No assets have been pledged as security for any liabilities by the department.

Reconciliation

Carrying amount at 1 July

-
Acquisitions
Disposals
Revaluation increments
Depreciation
Carrying amount at 30 June

Carrying amount at 1 July
Acquisitions
Disposals

Transfers between classes
Depreciation
Carrying amount at 30 June

- (1,063)
42,293 - 19 32,842 75,154

42,729 705

(21) (306)

(1,794)

$'000

(834)
13,399

Capital work 
in progress Total

-

(41)

(834)

(506)

$'000

Heritage and cultural

-

41

- 7 13,406

(705)

57,186

2012
$'000 

(18,445) -

62,071

-

1,231

Infrastructure

19,443

- -
-

(177) -
29,665

Infrastructure

29,587

1,615

173

(6,375)

-

62,071

At 30 June 2013 management assessed the currency of assumptions and condition of the assets as applied in the 2010-11 independent valuation. 
 To support this assessment, consideration was given to the SunWater 2010-2020 Water Supply Asset Management Plan  which is a long term 
maintenance and replacement plan aimed at keeping the infrastructure assets in good working condition. SunWater maintain the infrastructure 
assets on behalf of the department.

(1,025) (38)

41,703

-

20

Heritage and cultural

$'000

-

60,236

-

$'000 $'000

- 925

Plant and 
equipment

18,272

-

1,615

78

The department has no plant and equipment with a written down value of zero still being used in the provision of services.

(1,025)

2013

Prior year machinery-of-Goverment 
adjustments

$'000

-

925 19,443

41,703

(7,586)

7,995

$'000

925

- (769)

$'000

-

Capital work 
in progress Total

59,456

42,293

(41)

19,443

Infrastructure assets were independently valued in 2010–11 by SunWater, an industry specialist in bulk water infrastructure construction and 
management. The valuation undertaken determined the fair value of the assets as represented by depreciated current replacement cost, taking into 
consideration a regional weighting and condition assessment.  The valuation was based on a desktop exercise whereby SunWater did not undertake 
a physical inspection but relied on its knowledge as repairs and maintenance provider for the infrastructure.  Assets were allocated a condition 
rating, scale of 1 being new and in excellent condition, to a scale of 6 which indicated a failing in operational capability.  The majority of the 
infrastructure assets were allocated a mid-point rating of 3.  In determining replacement cost, reference was made to maps, drawings and other 
reports as available to substantiate units, size and quantities of components and a unit rate was applied. The unit rate was determined with 
reference to industry standards and compared with similar assets owned by SunWater. All assumptions, calculations and values were reviewed by 
civil engineers, Cardno (registered valuers).

-

-

(15,483)(17,163)
41,703

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Plant and 
equipment

$'000

2013

32,842

$'000 

2012

Disposal through restructure (note 
1(ad))
Disposal through donation/below fair 
value

(177)

$'000

- - - (18,272)(18,272)

-

62,07175,155

-

8,807

In accordance with Queensland Treasury and Trade's Non-Current Asset Policies for the Queensland Public Sector , management assessed 
infrastructure asset values to determine the fair value of the infrastructure asset class as at 30 June 2012 and 30 June 2013.  For both years 
management considered the Office of Economic and Statistical Research (OESR) Engineering construction, Queensland as the most appropriate 
index to represent the fair value of the infrastructure assets.  For 2011-2012 the index represented an increase of less than 2% which was assessed 
to be immaterial and therefore not applied.  The movement for the two year period to 30 June 2013 was calculated to be a 4% increase and this 
index was applied to the infrastructure assets.

The department as trustee for the State of Queensland, holds seven parcels of reserve land located in the Northern Peninsula Area Regional 
Council. The department has constructed infrastructure assets on these land assets for use by Far North Queensland indigenous communities.
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18.  Payables

Trade creditors
Other 
Total

Non-current
Creditors
Total

19.  Accrued employee benefits

Annual leave levy payable
Long service leave levy payable
Other employee entitlements payable
Total

20.  Other liabilities

Non-current
Deposits held
Total

21.  Asset revaluation surplus

Balance as at 1 July

Revaluation increments
Balance as at 30 June

Balance as at 1 July
Balance as at 30 June

Operating surplus/(deficit)
Depreciation and amortisation expense
Impairment losses
Transfer of non-current physical assets to local councils
Net (gain)/loss on sale of property, plant and equipment
Other non-cash items
Notional interest

Change in assets and liabilities

(Increase)/decrease in receivables
(Increase)/decrease in GST receivable

(Increase)/decrease in inventories
(Increase)/decrease in prepayments
Increase/(decrease) in payables
Increase/(decrease) in other liabilities
Increase/(decrease) in accrued employee benefits
Increase/(decrease) in unearned revenue
Increase/(decrease) in GST payable
Increase/(decrease) in ALCS and LSL levy payable
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities

-

$'000 

18,303

350

-
177

The land revaluation surplus is attributable to land revaluation increments in prior years.  Notwithstanding the department does not currently hold 
land that has been revalued, the reserve will remain available for future land revaluation decrements.

22.  Reconciliation of operating surplus to net cash provided by (used in) operating activities

18,303

19,918

130
791

537

730

(1,843)

(973) (23,124)

(45,365)

19,115

1,717

(8,660)

(189)

14,537

685

1,425

- 18,303

258

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2013

537

5,456

2012

-

9,732

581

18,272
601

-

-

(Increase)/decrease in departmental services revenue receivable

-

1

$'000 

-

(787)

1,615

$'000 

- 18,303

1,615

18,303

2012

- 18,303

Infrastructure

2013

1,401

Land

411

941

(761)

11,889

-
(4,011) (48,745)

(75)

1,683

(95)

1,063

-

30 -

$'000 

88
(1,278)

94

9,382

6,186

-

2,395

Total
$'000 

2

(Increase)/decrease in ALCS and LSL reimbursement receivables

(9)

3,053

(8,058)

-

18,303

922
-

1,615

30
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23.  Non-cash financing and investing activities

24.  Commitments for expenditure

(a)  Non-cancellable operating leases

Not later than one year
Later than one year and not later than five years
Total

(b)  Capital expenditure commitments

Not later than one year
Total

(c)  Grants and subsidies commitments

Not later than one year
Later than one year and not later than five years
Total

The above commitments for grants and subsidies expenditure are allocated to the following categories:
Charities and community groups
Local authorities
Total 

(d)  Other expenditure commitments

Not later than one year
Total

25.  Contingencies

(a)  Litigation in progress

(b)  Native title claims

(c)  Guarantees and undertakings

26.  Events occurring after balance date

118,655

Commitments for infrastructure works in progress, inclusive of anticipated GST, contracted for at reporting date but not recognised in the accounts 
are payable as follows:

77,666

As at 30 June 2013, approval has been given to various grantees in accordance with formal agreements to pay the following grants and subsidies 
inclusive of anticipated GST provided certain criteria are met:

1,059
560

Commitments under operating leases at reporting date are inclusive of anticipated GST and are payable as follows:

$'000 

2,056 2,075

127,962

357

$'000 

Other expenditure committed at the end of the period but not recognised in the accounts are payable as follows:

2013 2012

77,666

21,596
9,203

1,584

9,203

7,78063

21,596

1,584

17,0871,033

1,496

135,742

Assets and liabilities received and/or transferred by the department as a result of machinery-of-Government changes are set out in note 1(ad).

Assets and liabilities received or donated/transferred by the department and recognised as revenues and expenses are set out in note 5 and 12 
respectively.

At 30 June 2013, no instances of litigation have been filed in the courts against the department.

As at 30 June 2013, no determinations affecting the department in relation to native title claims have been made by the National Native Title 
Tribunal.

The department holds two bank guarantees totalling $0.117 million as security for the performance and satisfaction of construction contracts. Where 
the conditions of the contract agreements have not been satisfied the department is entitled to draw on these guarantees. These guarantees are not 
recognised on the Statement of financial position.

76,633

357

135,742
77,603

1,016

There are no material events occurring after balance date to report.

Operating leases are entered into as a means of acquiring access to office accommodation.  Lease payments are fixed, but with annual escalation 
clauses on which contingent rentals are determined.  No operating leases contain restrictions on financing or other leasing activities.

During the 2013 year $995,047 (2011–12: $4,419,148) was recognised by the department as an expense in the Statement of comprehensive income 
in respect of operating leases.

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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27.  Financial instruments

(a)  Categorisation of financial instruments

The department has the following categories of financial assets and financial liabilities:

Category
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Receivables
Total

Financial liabilities
Payables measured at amortised cost
Total

(b) Financial risk management

The department measures risk exposure using a variety of methods as follows:

Risk exposure Measurement method
Credit risk Ageing analysis, earnings at risk
Liquidity risk Sensitivity analysis
Market risk Interest rate sensitivity analysis

(c)  Credit risk exposure

Maximum exposure to credit risk

Category
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents

Receivables
Total

Financial assets

No collateral is held as security and no credit enhancements relate to financial assets held by the department.

No financial assets and financial liabilities have been offset and presented net in the Statement of financial position.

13,947

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

$'000
2013 2012

11,430
31,062              

13
14

Notes

25,377

$'000

Notes

The following table represents the department's maximum exposure to credit risk based on contractual amounts net of any allowances:

2013

13

31,062              
14

13,947 2,973                

The maximum exposure to credit risk at balance date in relation to each class of recognised financial assets is the gross carrying amount of those 
assets inclusive of any allowance for impairment.

18

11,430 28,089              

Credit risk exposure refers to the situation where the department may incur financial loss as a result of another party to a financial instrument failing 
to discharge their obligation.

2012

9,732                
6,723

28,089              

25,377

6,723

$'000 $'000

The carrying amount of receivables represents the maximum exposure to credit risk.

The department manages credit risk through the use of a credit management strategy. This strategy aims to reduce the exposure to credit default by 
ensuring that the department invests in secure assets and monitors all funds owed on a timely basis. Exposure to credit risk is monitored on an 
ongoing basis.

The allowance for impairment reflects the occurrence of loss events.  The most readily identifiable loss event is where a debtor is overdue in paying 
a debt to the department, according to the due date (normally terms of 30 days).  Economic changes impacting the department's debtors, and 
relevant industry data, also form part of the department's documented risk analysis.

2,973                

Financial risk management is implemented pursuant to Queensland Government and departmental policy. These policies focus on the 
unpredictability of financial markets and seek to minimise potential adverse effects on the financial performance of the department.

All financial risk is managed by the department, under financial arrangements of Queensland Treasury and Trade.

9,732                

The department's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks - interest rate risk, credit risk, liquidity risk and market risk.
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27.  Financial instruments (continued)

(c)  Credit risk exposure (continued)

2013 Financial assets past due but not impaired

Financial assets
Receivables
Total

2012 Financial assets past due but not impaired

Financial assets
Receivables
Total

2012 Individually impaired financial assets

Financial assets
Receivables (gross)

Allowance for impairment loss
Total

Movements in Allowance for Impairment loss
Balance at 1 July
Decrease in allowance recognised in operating result
Amounts written-off during the year
Balance at 30 June

(d)  Liquidity risk

5 - 

- 9 

More than 90 
days

Overdue

61–90 days

$'000

12 

$'000

$'000
30–60 days

68 

Total
$'000

12 

$'000

68 

$'000

$'000

47 - 

Total

$'000

Less than 30 
days Total

$'000

If no loss events have arisen in respect of a particular debtor or group of debtors, no allowance for impairment is made in respect of that debt/group 
of debtors.   If the department determines that an amount owing by such a debtor does become uncollectible (after an appropriate range of debt 
recovery actions), that amount is recognised as a bad debt expense and written-off directly against receivables.  In other cases where a debt 
becomes uncollectible but the uncollectible amount exceeds the amount already allowed for impairment of that debt, the excess is recognised 
directly as a bad debt expense and written-off directly against receivables.

Ageing of past due but not impaired as well as impaired financial assets are disclosed in the following tables:

$'000

Less than 30 
days

Overdue

30–60 days

30–60 days

61–90 days

Less than 30 
days

More than 90 
days

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

10 4 
4 5 

More than 90 
days

- 10 

$'000

$'000

47 

4 1 

1 
- 
4 - 

(4)

$'000

1 

-

- 

(4)

Liquidity risk refers to the situation where the department may encounter difficulty in meeting obligations associated with financial liabilities that are 
settled by delivering cash or another financial asset.

The department is exposed to liquidity risk in respect of its payables.

6 

61–90 days

$'000

(4)

10 

4

The department manages liquidity risk through use of a liquidity management strategy. This strategy aims to reduce the exposure to liquidity risk by 
ensuring the department has sufficient funds available to meet employee and supplier obligations as they fall due. This is achieved by ensuring that 
minimum levels of cash are held within the various bank accounts so as to match the expected duration of the various employee and supplier 
liabilities.

$'000

- -
- (4)

2013 2012

- 

- 

$'000 $'000

(4)

5 

Overdue

9 

1 
1 
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27.  Financial instruments (continued)

(d)  Liquidity risk (continued)

Category Notes
Financial liabilities
Payables
Total

Category Notes
Financial liabilities
Payables
Total

(e)  Market risk

(f)  Interest rate sensitivity analysis

Financial instruments

Cash

Financial instruments

Cash

(g)  Fair value

2012
$'000

28. Reconciliation of payments from consolidated fund to administered revenue
Budgeted appropriation
Treasurer's transfers
Lapsed appropriation(1)

Administered item appropriation recognised - refer to Note 29

29. Schedule of administered items
Administered grants and subsidies were made to the following entities:

Local authorities

Queensland Reconstruction Authority
Total

(795,926)

421,538

1,177,793

2,969

6,186
6,186

139

-

-

(139) (139)

- 1%

6,723

+ 1%

537

- 1%

537

(1) Lapses in administered items primarily relate to a revision of funding requirements and a deferral to 2013-14 under the Natural Disaster and 
Recovery Arrangements.

9,732

2012 payable in

Carrying 
amount

$'000

The fair value of trade receivables and payables is assumed to approximate the value of the original transaction, less any allowance for impairment 
loss.

-18

(30)

13,946

$'000

<1 year Total

9,732

-

> 5 years

$'000

$'000

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

$'000
2013

+ 1%

(139)

$'000

2,969

1–5 years

Carrying 
amount

$'000

13,946
139

18

The department does not trade in foreign currency and is not materially exposed to commodity price changes. The department is exposed to interest 
rate risk through cash deposited in interest bearing accounts. The department does not undertake any hedging in relation to interest risk.

The following interest rate sensitivity analysis depicts the outcome on net income if interest rates would change by +/- 1% from the year-end rates 
applicable to the department's financial assets and liabilities. With all other variables held constant, the department would have a operating result 
and equity decrease of $139,000 (2012: $30,000).

Equity
$'000

$'000

197,634

756,255

30

9,732

542,689 

9,732

542,689 

$'000

-

126,142 

The following table sets out the liquidity risk of financial liabilities held by the department. It represents the contractual maturity of financial liabilities, 
calculated based on undiscounted cash flows relating to the liabilities at reporting date.

Potential impact

> 5 years
2013 payable in

1–5 years
$'000

Profit
$'000

30

$'000

Profit
$'000

Total

30

Equity
$'000

(139) 139

Equity
$'000

2013  interest rate risk

30

Profit
$'000

Profit
$'000

6,723

542,689 

- 

- 

1,776,085

(30)

<1 year

-

2012 interest rate risk

139

Equity
$'000

(30)

416,547 

Potential impact

1,177,793

(30)

The department does not have any financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value.
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Department of Local Government, Community Recovery and Resilience

for the year ended 30 June 2013

30. Correction of errors

Retrospective adjustments
Statement of comprehensive income (extract) for
the year ended 30 June 2012

Income from continuing operations

Other revenues

Statement of financial position (extract)
as at 30 June 2012

Non-current assets

Receivables

Equity

Accumulated surplus

Statement of financial position (extract)
as at 30 June 2011

Non-current assets

Receivables

Equity

Accumulated surplus

2012
(Previously 

stated)

429,815 (4,916) 424,899

Notes

Notes

5

14

Notes

2012 2012
(Previously 

stated)

$'000

(4,821)

1 July 1 July

401,780

12,800 (4,821) 7,979

13,903 (4,916) 8,987

(Previously 
stated)

Increase/ 
(decrease)

$'000

(Restated)

$'000

$'000

$'000 $'000

2012

(Restated)
Increase/ 

(decrease)

Increase/ 
(decrease)

2011

406,601

2011

In the process of preparing the financial statements for the year ending 30 June 2013, amounts relating to prior periods were required to be adjusted 
to accurately reflect the balances of the comparative periods.  The correction has been made by adjusting the opening balances at 1 July 2011 
where necessary and the comparative amounts for the year ended 30 June 2012.  Details of the changes are provided below.

7,193 95 7,288

In accordance with prescribed requirements the department has adjusted the value of non-current loans receivable as at July 2011 to represent the 
fair value as being the future cash flows discounted using the QTC yield curve at the date of loan inception.  As such, in accordance with AASB 101 
Presentation of Financial Statements  para 39, a third Statement of financial position and notes to the restated amounts have been presented.  
Details of the changes are provided below. Refer note 1(i).

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Restated)

$'000 $'000 $'000
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Appendix 1.  
Schedule of statutory bodies 

Queensland Reconstruction Authority 

The Queensland Reconstruction Authority 
(QRA) was established under the 
Queensland Reconstruction Authority Act 
2011 following unprecedented natural 
disasters that struck Queensland during 
the 2010–11 summer.  

Following natural disasters in January 
2013, the Queensland Reconstruction 
Authority Amendment Act 2013 extended 
QRA’s mandate until 30 June 2015.  

QRA’s role encompasses managing and 
coordinating the Government’s program of 
infrastructure renewal and recovery across 
communities affected by disasters 
including the historical disaster events of 
2009 through to 2013.  

QRA focuses on working with state and 
local government partners to deliver value 
for money, and best practice expenditure 
and acquittal of public reconstruction 
funds. 

QRA’s natural disaster relief and recovery 
strategic objectives are: 

 build a resilient Queensland and 
support resilient Queenslanders 

 deliver best practice expenditure of 
public reconstruction funds. 

In February 2013 responsibility for QRA 
was transferred from the Department of 
State Development, Infrastructure and 
Planning to the Department of Local 
Government, Community Recovery and 
Resilience. 

The 2012–13 annual report published by 
QRA provides full financial reporting for 
the 2012–13 financial year. The 
Department administered funding to QRA 
of $0.76 billion in 2012–13. For 2013–14 
this is projected to be $4.1 billion.  
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Appendix 2.  
Compliance checklist 

Summary of requirement Basis for requirement Annual report 
reference 

Letter of 
compliance 

A letter of compliance from the 
accountable officer or 
statutory body to the relevant 
Minister 

ARRs – section 8 Letter of compliance 

Table of contents 

Glossary 

ARRs – section 10.1 Contents 

Glossary 

Public availability ARRs – section 10.2 Imprint page 

Interpreter service statement Queensland Government 
Language Services Policy 

ARRs – section 10.3 

Imprint page 

Copyright notice Copyright Act 1968 

ARRs – section 10.4 

Imprint page 

Accessibility 

Information licensing Queensland Government 
Enterprise Architecture – 
Information licensing 

ARRs – section 10.5 

Imprint page 

General 
information 

Introductory Information ARRs – section 11.1 

 

About the department 

 Agency role and main 
functions 

ARRs – section 11.2 About the department 

Legislation obligations 

 Operating environment ARRs – section 11.3 Operating environment 

 Machinery of Government 
changes 

ARRs – section 11.4 About the department 

Government objectives for the 
community 

ARRs – section 12.1 Partners in Government 

Other whole-of-government 
plans / specific initiatives 

ARRs – section 12.2 COAG 

Disability Planning 

Agency objectives and 
performance indicators 

ARRs – section 12.3 DLGCRR Strategic plan 

Non-financial 
performance 

Agency service areas, service 
standards and other measures 

ARRs – section 12.4 Service Standards 

Summary of financial 
performance 

ARRs – section 13.1 Summary of financial 
performance 

Financial 
performance 

Chief Finance Officer (CFO) 
statement 

ARRs – section 13.2 Chief Financial Officer 
Statement 

Organisational structure ARRs – section 14.1 Organisational chart Governance – 
management and 
structure Executive management ARRs – section 14.2 Executive Leadership 
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Team 

Related entities ARRs – section 14.3 Related entities 

Boards and committees ARRs – section 14.4 Committees and 
Tribunals 

Public Sector Ethics Act 1994 Public Sector Ethics Act 
1994 

(section 23 and Schedule) 

ARRs – section 14.5 

Ethics and integrity 

Risk management ARRs – section 15.1 Risk management 

External Scrutiny ARRs – section 15.2 External accountability 
mechanisms 

Audit committee ARRs – section 15.3 Audit and Risk 
Management 
Committee 

Internal Audit ARRs – section 15.4 Internal Audit 

Public Sector Renewal 
Program 

ARRs – section 15.5 Director-General’s 
message 

Governance – risk 
management and 
accountability 

Information systems and 
recordkeeping 

ARRs – section 15.7 Information 
management and record 
keeping 

Workforce planning, attraction 
and retention and performance 

ARRs – section 16.1 Our workforce profile 

Managing our workforce 

Developing our 
workforce 

Early retirement, redundancy 
and retrenchment 

Directive No.11/12 Early 
Retirement, Redundancy 
and Retrenchment 

ARRs – section 16.2 

Early retirement, 
redundancy, 
retrenchment and 
voluntary separation 

Governance – 
human resources 

Voluntary Separation Program ARRs – section 16.3 Early retirement, 
redundancy, 
retrenchment and 
voluntary separation 

Open Data Open Data ARRs – section 17 Imprint page 

Certification of financial 
statements 

FAA – section 62 

FPMS – sections 42, 43 
and 50 

ARRs – section 18.1 

Financial statements 

Independent Auditors Report FAA – section 62 

FPMS – section 50 

ARRs – section 18.2 

Financial statements 

Financial 
statements 

Remuneration disclosures Financial Reporting 
Requirements for 
Queensland Government 
Agencies 

ARRs – section 18.3 

Financial statements 
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Abbreviations 
Abbreviation Description 

ARMC Audit and Risk Management Committee 

ARRs Annual reporting requirements for Queensland Government agencies 

CEO Chief Executive Officer 

CLF capability and leadership framework 

COAG Council of Australian Governments 

DSDIP Department of State Development, Infrastructure and Planning 

eDRMS electronic document records management system 

ELT Executive Leadership Team 

FAMC Finance and Asset Management Committee 

ICT Information and Communication Technology 

IM information management 

ISC Information Steering Committee 

LGAQ Local Government Association of Queensland 

LGRF Local Government Reform Fund 

NDRRA Natural Disaster Relief and Recovery Arrangements 

PSC Public Service Commission 

QAO Queensland Audit Office 

QRA Queensland Reconstruction Authority 

QTT Queensland Treasury and Trade 

SDS Service Delivery Statements 

SLA Service Level Agreement 
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Glossary 
Term Description 

administrative arrangements Administrative Arrangements Orders set out the principal 
responsibilities of government ministers and their portfolios. 

all hazards approach An all hazards approach refers to ensuring disaster planning 
and preparedness encompasses all potential natural 
disasters, including flood and fire. 

community infrastructure Community infrastructure can include not only tangible 
infrastructure built for the use of a community, such as local 
parks and roads, but also intangible infrastructure such as 
community plans and networks. 

de-amalgamation The de-amalgamation process enables approved local 
government areas with community support for  
de-amalgamation to become independent from larger 
regional councils into which they were previously 
amalgamated. 

financial sustainability A local government is financially sustainable is the local 
government is able to maintain its financial capital and 
infrastructure capital over the long-term. 

local laws The Local Government Act 2009 and City of Brisbane Act 2010 
empower local governments to make local laws that are 
suitable to their particular needs and resources, and that 
achieve the purposes a principles of government. 

machinery-of-government 
changes 

The term ‘machinery-of-government changes’ describes 
organisational or functional change affecting the Queensland 
Government. This can include decisions to abolish or create a 
department/agency or to move functions/ responsibilities 
between departments/agencies. 

whole-of-government Whole-of-government is a term used to refer to all 
Queensland Government departments and agencies. 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

Department of Local Government, Community Recovery and Resilience 
41 George Street, Brisbane 
tel 13 QGOV (13 74 68) 
info@dlgcrr.qld.gov.au 
 
www.dlgcrr.qld.gov.au 

Contacts 
Department of Local Government, Community Recovery and Resilience 
Levels 17 and 18, 41 George Street, Brisbane 
PO Box 15009 
City East Qld 4002 
tel 13 QGOV (13 7468) 
info@dlgcrr.qld.gov.au 
 

Regional Offices 

Southern Region 
 
Bundaberg Office 
Level 1, 7 Takalvan Street, Bundaberg 
PO Box 979, Bundaberg Qld 4670 
tel +61 7 4121 1496 
 
Maryborough Office 
319 – 325 Kent Street, Maryborough 
PO Box 73, Maryborough Qld 4650 
tel +61 7 4121 1496 
 
Rockhampton Office 
Level 3, 130 Victoria Parade, Rockhampton 
PO Box 113, Rockhampton Qld 4700 
tel +61 7 4938 6532 
fax +61 7 4938 6529 
 
Sunshine Coast Office 
Level 8, Mike Ahern Government Office 
Building 12 First Avenue, Maroochydore 
PO Box 1129, Maroochydore Qld 4558 
tel +61 7 5459 8292 
 
Toowoomba Office 
Canberra Place 
123 Margaret Street, Toowoomba 
PO Box 825, Toowoomba Qld 4350 
tel +61 7 4616 1982 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Northern Region 
 
Townsville Office 
Level 5, Central Plaza 
370 Flinders Street, Townsville 
PO Box 5666, Townsville Qld 4810 
tel +61 7 4799 7379 
fax +61 7 4760 7535 
 
Cairns Office 
Level 9, Citi Central 
46–48 Sheridan Street, Cairns 
PO Box 3038, Cairns Qld 4870 
tel +61 7 4039 8549 
fax +61 7 4039 8866 
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